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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with the
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's turnover from continuing operations for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$341.4 million,
representing a 19.4% decrease from the previous year. Overall gross
profit from continuing operations amounted to approximately HK$75.1
million this year, representing an 24.4% increase from the previous
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$16.7 million (2018: HK$1.2 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK6.24 cents (2018: HKO0.46 cent) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the first half of 2019, a factory (the “Shiyan factory”) in the
precision parts and component segment had been closed down,
and also the business operation for consumer electronics products
segment had discontinued, which had discussed in the interim report
of 2019. Furthermore, as the cost of manufacturing at Mainland
China was highly affected by Renminbi (“RMB") exchange rate, the
Group had entered into forward currency contracts since April 2019
to manage the impact of appreciation of RMB. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the realised loss for these forward currency contracts
of approximately HK$6.4 million (2018: Nil) was incurred. Despite
this, the weak RMB released our cost of manufacturing resulting in
an improvement of profit margin in 2019.

Due to the deprived output from Shiyan Factory, the turnover of the
precision parts and components segment dropped to approximately
HK$341.4 million, representing a decrease of 19.4% from previous
year. Despite the absence of profit contribution from Shiyan factory in
2019, the segment profit increased to approximately HK$27.2 million
(2018: HK$17.6 million) mainly attributable to the depreciation of RMB
which released the cost of manufacturing in Mainland China and the
absence of one-off provision for staff compensation (2018: HK$13.4
million) for closure of Shiyan Factory.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

With the completion of the discontinuation in business operation of
the consumer electronic products segment in the third quarter of 2019,
the turnover of the segment dropped by 89.7% to approximately
HK$4.1 million. Since most of the staff had been laid off at end of
2018, the segment loss decreased to approximately HK$0.9 million
from HK$7.9 million in 2018.

As discussed above, due to the absence of staff compensation incurred
in 2018 for closure of Shiyan factory and the weak RMB, the gross
profit margin from continuing operations of the Group in 2019 had
increased by 7.8% to 22.0%. In addition, with the cessation of Shiyan
factory, the selling and distribution costs, administrative and other
expenses for continuing operations dropped by 7.9% and 2.8% to
approximately HK$24.9 million and HK$32.1 million respectively. The
administrative and other expenses included a loss on disposal for
low-performance machineries of approximately HK$4.4 million (2018:
HK$0.1 million) as a result of the pressing need to provide more space
for new machineries at the existing manufacturing plants. The finance
costs from continuing operations decreased to approximately HK$1.1
million (2018: HK$1.8 million) due to the decreased financing activities.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The business outlook of the Group remains good despite a number of
uncertainties such as the recent coronavirus, lingering trade conflicts
between the United State of America and China, the volatility of RMB,
and the labour shortage at the manufacturing sector in Mainland China.
For the coronavirus, the Group is assessing the potential impacts to the
business. And, looking ahead, the Group will keep on exploring and
serving diversified customers mitigating any negative impact arising
from the trade conflicts, actively seek opportunity and new technology
to invest in production automation solving the labour shortage, and
also continue utilising the forward currency contracts to manage the
volatility of RMB impacting our cost of manufacturing. Hence, we
are still confident that the Group will improve the profitability in the
future. The Group’s financial position remains healthy and is strong
enough to finance our daily operation.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board of directors,
management team and all our staff for their contribution, and also
thank for the support of our shareholders and business partners over
the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2019.

e Turnover from continuing operations decreased by 19.4% from
the previous year to approximately HK$341.4 million for the year.

e Gross profit from continuing operations increased by HK$14.8
million from 2018 to approximately HK$75.1 million in 2019.

e  Profit from continuing operating activities before finance costs
increased by HK$9.6 million from previous year to approximately
HK$24.4 million for the year.

e  Finance costs from continuing operations decreased by HK$0.7
million from the previous year to approximately HK$1.1 million.

e  Profit after tax from continuing operations for the year was
approximately HK$17.6 million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and components
segment and consumer electronic products segment had decreased by
19.4% and 89.7% respectively as compared with the previous year.

The Group’s overall gross profit from continuing operations had
increased by 24.4% from the previous year.

The Group’s finance costs from continuing operations had dropped
to approximately HK$1.1 million for the year due to decrease in
financing activities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal bankers and other
financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks included all term loans, import and
export loans, which amounted to approximately HK$12.0 million as
at 31 December 2019.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of bank balances and cash
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$51.5 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The Group’s borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts its
business.

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total capital
plus net debt as at 31 December 2019 was 10.3% (2018: 23.4%).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s machines and equipment carrying
amount of approximately HK$3.3 million (2018: HK$7.9 million) and
no trade receivables (2018: HK$0.1 million) were pledged under
lease/finance leases and bank loans — discounted bills with recourse
respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$286.3 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group’s
trading requirements and finance leases to finance the acquisition of
machines and equipment, the Group did not have any fund raising
activities in 2019.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 1,039 of which approximately 34 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based in overseas and approximately
1,000 were based in Mainland China.

The Group remunerates its employees largely based on the prevailing
industry practice and labour laws. Since December 1996, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees of the Group.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all its Hong Kong
employees. For overseas and Mainland China employees, the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, throughout the year ended
31 December 2019, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since
the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company and believes that this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The overall management
of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to
the executive directors. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s
overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders. These include
financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policy, the annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, risk management strategies, treasury policies and group
structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of director’s liability.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2019, four regular board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company and
one annual general meeting was held. The attendance record of each
director is set out below:

Attendance of annual
general meeting

ESSERRRREFAE
ERBERETHECE
BE_Z-NF+-_A=t—BLFER-

gEg Eﬁﬁﬂmmﬁam NEEEET
DA RS RALEAREE 2 F B REERR - I
ERRHEARDNR 2 BERE IR R R

—RREBRFRE - FEFF 2 H B
T

Attendance of
Board meetings

in 2019 in 2019
—E-NEFEHE —E-hFHE
Name of director BEEHS ES RN BEESREY
Lai Pei Wor FEIE AN 1/1 4/4
Chan Yau Wah PR 1/1 3/4
Kung Fan Cheong LlEE 1/1 4/4
Mak Kwai Wing BEL 1/1 4/4
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 1/1 4/4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION TEERBEE
The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. The — AR R AL BEE

Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out hereunder:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and directors of the
Company;

review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report; and

review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and from
time to time recommend any necessary changes.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are not
separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company, the Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts with the
Company for a specified period of two years and are appointed
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals or reading books and
articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received
by the respective directors are kept by the company secretary of the
Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is summarised below:

FEEXRR
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Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

BEXEHEBRESREZ

Name of Director BEEHA 3R E
Lai Pei Wor FEEE TN 1
Chan Yau Wah PRz 5 1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1
Mak Kwai Wing EHK 1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 3

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Tsang Wai Lun (“Mr. Tsang”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 3 May 2019. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website (except Executive
Committee) and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the current members of each Board committee (except
Executive Committee) are independent non-executive directors, while
all the members of the Executive Committee are executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

(c) toexercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
its regular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
them are independent non-executive directors. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (chairman), Mr.
Mak Kwai Wing and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out below:

FHZEES

FMEEGRMM=RREMAR  HKEY
RBUFNTES - GTHEAERERILE
BRE(ERE)  BEREERFRHFEE -

REER FWHEZESCHRT - REHE - F
MEZEEEXBE 2RI

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2019

—E-hEFHE
Name of director ] FHEES SRR
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LEE FE) 11
Mak Kwai Wing EER 1/1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =] 171

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
which should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive bonus
and retirement benefit policies for the Group which are substantial
in their cost and have an impact on a significant proportion of
employees; and

() to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out below:
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Number of individuals

Remuneration by band HrEN A8 B #8 B A 21
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 702 1,500,000/% 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C%2,000,000/%7T
Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, Mr. Mak Kwai Wing and
Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is set
out below:

REEES
REZESANHE—BNITES - FIENL
E(EE)R=ZBBIFATESEK - B
FERLE  BEREERTNIBELE -

REFER  REZEGCHET - RSH - 12
HLRBERKEB ZHFERENT

Attendance of Nomination
Committee meeting in 2019

—E-NFHE
Name of director EEHA REZEEERRY
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) IR (£/E) 11
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 11
Mak Kwai Wing BHELE 11
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8 1/1
The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows: REZEe 7 BENT
(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but not (a) ZEAVEFHTESSHIZEE - ALK
limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry experience, BZTL(BREERRNFR - 5 -
educational background, knowledge and length of service) of e BERTELSR #HEHXSE M

the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and the
measurable objectives that the board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives; and

to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage. A diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the age, gender, skills, professional
and industry experience, educational background, knowledge and
length of service. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of the Board
are made on merit against objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Diversity at all levels have been shown to improve retention and
reduce the costs associated with employee turnover. In a diverse
workplace, employees are more likely remain loyal when they feel
respected, valued for their unique contribution and the importance
of being able to attract, retain and motivate employees from the
widest possible pool of available talent. Employees are more likely
to feel comfortable and happy in an environment where inclusivity
is a priority. Equality in the workplace is important for encouraging
workers from all backgrounds to feel confident in their ability and
achieve their best. The Company are committed to diversity at all
levels, including gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience. The recruitment and selection practices at all
levels are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered. The Company would identify and provide the relevant
professional training programs that will assist in the development of a
broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees
and that, in time, their skills will prepare them for senior management
and board positions.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board and will give adequate consideration
to this Policy including gender balance of the directors and senior
management and their direct reports, and its progress in achieving
its diversity objectives.

Selection of individuals will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry
experience, educational background, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected individuals will bring to the Board.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EERABBR
1. Nomination and Appointment of Directors 1. ESNRERER
(a) Criteria (a) %A

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, I m AR EREAEEES
the following criteria should be considered: B THIERIEHERE -

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to
the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time
to time for nomination of directors and succession
planning.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

2. Nomination Process

(a) Appointment of New Director

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)
2. Nomination Process (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Chan Yau Wah and Mr. Mak Kwai Wing shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 24 April 2020 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

REE N &

BEARFER - KRAEMN T/ A TZE
B ESIR (BB GFTMEBMABRARZ
T

Fees paid/payable

HK$

2 ENER

Services rendered FTi 1 2 IR 3% BT
Audit services ZERE 1,045,000
Non-audit services (taxation services) I BRTE (FRTGARTS) 65,400
1,110,400

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in
relation to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive directors. The current members of the Audit Committee
are Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan,
Joseph. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Mak Kwai Wing who
has appropriate accounting professional qualifications. Code Provision
C.3.3 stipulates that members of the Audit Committee should meet
at least twice a year with the Company’s auditors. During the year,
there were two meetings held between the Audit Committee and
the Company’s auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. During the year, the Audit Committee held three
meetings. The attendance record of each Audit Committee member
is set out below:

BEREEE

ARRIRESZZEGZHEKD BT LA
FEI2UERTE - ARAIERZEGKER=
FRUIFRITEFMANX - BRIBEZZBEZK
BEEREEREL  IESKERTRBE
o BRZEGIFEERAERABEZ
SR EXRER - TRAMRXFECIIGATE
ARARNMZHMEEZZBEENKEREE
LEBFEEMAK AFER BREZEER
RRBZHBE 2 HRITT MRS ° 1ok
ERZESBFELBTMASE - AFE
N BRZEGCRTZREE - EREE
SEKBZHFLEDT

Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2019

—E-NFHE
Name of director EEpns BERZEEEERRE
Mak Kwai Wing (Chairman) BEE (£/F) 3/3
Kung Fan Cheong HEE 3/3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph Bk 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include the
review of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and reporting
process, risk management system and internal control procedures. It
also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company’s
auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. During the
meetings held in 2019, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

(i) reviewed the directors’ report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(i) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2019;

(iii) reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the 2019
audit scope and fees;

(v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(vi) reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system; and

(vii) reviewed the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019. The directors ensure the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure the publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 47 to 52.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems
are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has overall
responsibilities for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, covering financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes the setting up of a
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, protects its assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. After reviewing the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Board considers that the systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that there was no material issue relating to the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year.

The internal control team of the Company plays a major role in
monitoring the risk management and internal controls of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has full access to
review all aspects of the Group's activities, risk management and
internal controls. All types of audited reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management, which will follow up on any
actions and measures taken to improve risk management and internal
controls on the recommendations by the internal control team.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
by the Group are summarized as follows:

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

e Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

e  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures
that appropriate internal control processes are in place.

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit
team, which reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Board
on a periodical basis. The team conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans for corrective
actions and control improvement are identified and communicated
with operations management to address any issues, non-compliance
or deficiencies identified. The team monitors the implementation of
its recommendations by the operations management and reports the
outcome to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIVIDEND POLICY

e The board of directors of the Company adopt the policy that,
in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.

e The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio.

e  The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of
the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Company and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

- financial results;

—  cash flow situation;

—  business conditions and strategies;

—  future operations and earnings;

—  capital requirements and expenditure plans;

— interests of shareholders;

— any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

— any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends

may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period:

interim dividend;

final dividend;

—  special dividend; and

— any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2020 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") will be held on 27 May
2020. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication with shareholders, the Company
maintains a website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate
governance code and other information are posted and available for
public access.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, member(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings, may by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition at the expense
of such requisitionist(s). If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The requisition must
specify the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened
as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the member(s) concerned at
a SGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(@) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than to a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error; and

(b) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.

IR R AER
BRBRRFIAE(RRERNAE])

REBEARRBZ AR - REFRFREEH
FRARRAMERARRBRRASKREREDT
PRYD 22— ZBRBAZ BERAIEBAR
AEFEYWERLEMEREHABRRER
RE BRAAABEBRIAXN - KREgKHmE
FEAH UMREZSRTPEEZEMNE
H-MEFENFRHRER-_T—ARK
ARKRFHIAE - AIERARTREAERZE
—NN—FRAVEBTAQ)G Z G SA R
ARETERABRRAE - BEERKVATIN
REZBENMHBMEBRIARE  TXEAR
RAREBZBIREIE °

HAERBEE  AARMEREREZSE
BIRBOEEERMAE D EMBREL TR
BAARRBRFERIAE - R - fWiE K8
THEE AERRE L AERERBN - R
RENAS BRI SIRERAH -

APTA S MR E LA - UEEERK
REHZBEREIAG L2 82 BIRRE
BEZEEMAEMIR - FIB0T

(@) WRBEEBRARBZERIRER(Fik
[ERRFRSE AR 2 M X BERTINMBHE L
) ARLPEZ+F—QHEART LR
BHOOEL¥(B zE2mAN : &

(b) WEBEBRAQNRZEREREE B
DR T HHE RS DR R F(10)E &
E¥QZE@MBRM -

BREBERERAT
—E-NEEH




ERERERE
Corporate Governance Report

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other RRBRRASIRSBEESLUIIZEE
than a Proposal for Election of Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws, UTRRFSAATZAGME] BRE—N
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and N—FRalENEREAENOERFIR ¢

regulation:

1. The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a SGM whenever necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 members, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concern and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei
Muk Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks
before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.

4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the member(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung,
N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law. Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276 3000 for any
assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholder meeting.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 63, is the chairman and managing director of
the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996. He is the founder of the Group
and has over 38 years of experience in the industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy making and financial
management. He has been a director of Hi-Tech Precision Industrial
Limited since 1984, a director of Hideki Electronics Limited since
1989, a director of Cokeen Development Limited and K. S. (China)
Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1990, a director of K & P
Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited since 1997, a
director of E-Dotcom Limited since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China)
Investment Limited and A Z8(7 1L1)&E F A BR A &) since 2002, a director
of Mars Field Limited, a director and legal representative of A L1
BN EF BB AT since 2010 and #r@MEFCRIINARE A T which
was liquidated in June 2019 and acted as a director of Technology
Trends International Limited since 2001 and a secretary since 2009.
He has also been appointed as a director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products
Factory Limited, a director of Hunpex Limited, and a director and legal
representative of SRIAZFERHR(RYINAR AT since 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chan Yau Wah, aged 61, is the deputy chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
13 September 1996. He is also a general manager in Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 1990. He is
responsible for the planning and management in production activities.
He holds a higher diploma in production and industrial engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in management studies from
the Hong Kong Management Association. He has over 38 years of
experience in the industry. He has been a director of Hideki Electronics
Limited and K & P Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of
K. S. (China) Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1995, a director
of Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings
Limited since 1997, a director of Technology Trends International
Limited since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited
and FAPI)EFAR AT since 2002 and acted as a director of
E-Dotcom Limited since 2009. He has also been appointed as a
director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of
Hunpex Limited, and a supervisor of $RHZERHE(RIINAR A A since
2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, aged 65, is a partner in the law firm of Pang,
Kung & Co. and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, FCPA (Aust), aged 70, graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences. He is also a Fellow of CPA Australia and an Associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Mak was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 3 July 2017.
Mr. Mak has over 40 years of experience in the taxation field. In July
2006, Mr. Mak joined Mazars Tax Services Limited (“Mazars Tax") as
an executive director, was a managing director of Mazars Tax from
January 2008 to August 2014 and was a Senior Advisor of Mazars Tax
from September 2014 to June 2017. Before joining Mazars Tax, Mr.
Mak was a tax principal at Ernst & Young and took early retirement
in January 2004. Currently, Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive
director of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00882)
and a member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Previously, Mr. Mak served as the governor of Rotary
International District 3450 and the Chairman of the Tax Specialization
Development Working Group of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 67, graduated from State University
of New York at Buffalo in the United States of America and holds
a bachelor of science in business administration degree. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 24 August 2005. After working in the business sector for 9 years,
he joined the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 1985
as an assistant director and in 1992 he was appointed as a director of
the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries from which post
he retired in January 2005. He has over 31 years experience in serving
the manufacturing industry of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 60, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He has
over 36 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 59, is the production manager of the precision
parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory, Zhongshan.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for the operation
and management in production segment. He has over 33 years of
experience in the industry.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts), and the design,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products (comprising
time, weather forecasting and other products). There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year, except for the discontinuance as explained in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 163.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2 cents
per ordinary share (2018: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
22 May 2020 to Wednesday, 27 May 2020, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Wednesday, 27 May 2020, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 21 May 2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3 June 2020 to Friday, 5 June 2020, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for the above final dividend of the Company, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 2 June 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the first half of 2019, a factory (the “Shiyan factory”) in the
precision parts and component segment had been closed down,
and also the business operation for consumer electronics products
segment had discontinued, which had discussed in the interim report
of 2019. Furthermore, as the cost of manufacturing at Mainland
China was highly affected by Renminbi (“RMB") exchange rate, the
Group had entered into forward currency contracts since April 2019
to manage the impact of appreciation of RMB. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the realised loss for these forward currency contracts
of approximately HK$6.4 million (2018: Nil) was incurred. Despite
this, the weak RMB released our cost of manufacturing resulting in
an improvement of profit margin in 2019.

Due to the deprived output from Shiyan Factory, the turnover of the
precision parts and components segment dropped to approximately
HK$341.4 million, representing a decrease of 19.4% from previous
year. Despite the absence of profit contribution from Shiyan factory in
2019, the segment profit increased to approximately HK$27.2 million
(2018: HK$17.6 million) mainly attributable to the depreciation of RMB
which released the cost of manufacturing in Mainland China and the
absence of one-off provision for staff compensation (2018: HK$13.4
million) for closure of Shiyan Factory.

With the completion of the discontinuation in business operation of
the consumer electronic products segment in the third quarter of 2019,
the turnover of the segment dropped by 89.7% to approximately
HK$4.1 million. Since most of the staff had been laid off at end of
2018, the segment loss decreased to approximately HK$0.9 million
from HK$7.9 million in 2018.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

As discussed above, due to the absence of staff compensation incurred
in 2018 for closure of Shiyan factory and the weak RMB, the gross
profit margin from continuing operations of the Group in 2019 had
increased by 7.8% to 22.0%. In addition, with the cessation of Shiyan
factory, the selling and distribution costs, administrative and other
expenses for continuing operations dropped by 7.9% and 2.8% to
approximately HK$24.9 million and HK$32.1 million respectively. The
administrative and other expenses included a loss on disposal for
low-performance machineries of approximately HK$4.4 million (2018:
HK$0.1 million) as a result of the pressing need to provide more space
for new machineries at the existing manufacturing plants. The finance
costs from continuing operations decreased to approximately HK$1.1
million (2018: HK$1.8 million) due to the decreased financing activities.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group's turnover from continuing operations for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$341.4 million,
representing an 19.4% decrease from previous year. Overall gross
profit from continuing operations amounted to approximately HK$75.1
million this year, representing an 24.4% increase from previous year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$16.7 million (2018: HK$1.2 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK6.24 cents (2018: HK0.46 cent) per share.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. We strive
to minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
require factories operate in compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators. Emails and electronic messages
have replaced letters for most formal and informal communications,
both externally and internally. Further details are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which will be published
on the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s and the Company’s
websites.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Bermuda.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, we have complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Bermuda.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures that all staff are reasonably
remunerated and it continues to improve and review and update
regularly on its policies for remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. Customers are encouraged to make
recommendations with the aim of improving products quality. The
Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair
and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget
at the end of each financial year based on their knowledge to the
external environments and a number of forecasts and estimates. Given
the change of unforeseeable external environments in the industry, the
Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital expenditures
and working capital requirements when changing the strategic plans
to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing keen competition in the market. To maintain
the Group's competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership
strategy as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other
competitors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting
from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 35 to consolidated
financial statements heading “Financial risk management objectives
and policies”.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 164. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to HK$12,308,368 (2018: HK$17,191,314) of
which the payment of HK2 cents per ordinary share was recommenced
as final dividend for the year (2018: Nil). During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company did not pay final dividend for 2018.
In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of HK$50,856,881 (2018: HK$50,856,881) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted
for 49.4% of the total sales of the Group for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 30.1%. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for 33.1% of the total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 12.6%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Chan Yau Wah and Mak Kwai Wing shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph,
the independent non-executive directors, are appointed for a period
of two years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to 34 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2018, and the contract can be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven months’
prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENT

2012 share option scheme was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company. No share options were granted, forfeited, cancelled or
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2019. Further details of
the share option scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FisRHEE - SORESMEE

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s
beneficially discretionary issued share
owned trust Total capital
EHEEZ EARAREET
Name of director EEH R HEEESR AIHA e s gripA= s
Lai Pei Wor FEIEAN 22,902,000 *97,242,000 120,144,000 45.00
Chan Yau Wah PR 20,000 - 20,000 0.00
22,922,000 97,242,000 120,164,000 45.00

Note: MEsE -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor's interests are set out in the section headed
“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:

ESTBROITES 2ER

B Bt BRI RARRE RO 2 s &
MR I REGEMBmRM T2 E 32
BEEEIN - NRBRAEE NEMREER
ERTENEFARES A ZEBIRKEF
FRFEWEAR R R Z B HEFFMEUS a8
2R MEFTETEEMZFEN A
NAHEEAME AR R FARESEITL
ER R BEERANMEMEMEABR
ERHLEER -

TERRREMALTRES REE
Ry zEZRER

RZB-NF+ZA=+—RH BARFE
ERTBTHRAEMRAM > THALHEE
(WHFARREFTHEIETHABR)RARE
Z Bty RARRIR ) R A R IR R S B &
PIZE336IRARHENECMMANEARE
ZREmNMORRIAT

RE:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SOREREE

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Company’s

beneficially minor Beneficiary issued

owned children of a trust Total  share capital

R A

= [ BRITRE

Name #®E BEEBEA AREFL  BREZERA @t B

Chan Yuk Lin (Note a) REE (Mita) - 22,902,000 97,242,000 120,144,000 45.00

Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note b)  Celaya (PTC)Limited (FifzEb) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
(B.VI.) Limited (Note ¢) (B.V1.) Limited (Ff3%c)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note d) wiHE (ftsa) 2,298,000 21,450,000 - 23,748,000 8.89

Lam Lin Chu (Note d) mEk (Fisa) 22,434,000 1,314,000 - 23,748,000 8.89
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SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(@) Ms. Chan Yuk Lin, spouse of Mr. Lai Pei Wor, was deemed to be interested
in the shares.

(b)  Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of The
Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate Services
(B.V.I.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust, a discretionary
trust of which the spouse and issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor are discretionary objects.

(c)  The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (b) above.

(d)  Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr. Lai
Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring interests
in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section "Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board Listing
Rules, are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEERA

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is
in force at the date of this report, for the benefit of a then director
or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or a then director or a director of its subsidiary (if made
by the Company). The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.

AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a resolution
for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at such annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

ESF B

REFARAHE B AL EBEBARREE
EERREFT(ERALRTREMEL)K
HNBAREREESRKEZT(WAARA
TR g AR 2 ERF R BEMRS - AR
FERHREAEREENGRABEZEE
EEhEMBEEERR

B BLEm

FERR(BE) QM EBAERARKR
B RT 2 RBFAE LREN KL —IAE
BEARRAIRBEN RE R MR LR
BERELES -

RREFE

FE
FEIEA

FE T EF=A-+<H

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019




B ZEARE

Independent Auditor’s Report

MAZARS

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 163, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the " Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MazArs CPA LIMITED

rh R SR ER (gl 06 B A R
42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continues)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter

REEEE

RRET FERERERMNEXHE - RA
HBAMGANBRERNEAR/SEEZNS
H o ZEERERRMIETERES M BR
REHEAERBRERE MEMTISHRES
HIEHBYNER - RPIEEE TEFEER
AREPINREEENHERESFFE -

described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in

our auditor’s report.

Key Audit Matter
ARENSBE

Valuation of land and buildings

IHMREFZIGE

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 A BREN F 14

As at 31 December 2019, land and buildings held by
the Group were stated at fair value of HK$144,095,000.
Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the land
and buildings, including the determination of valuation
techniques and the selection of different inputs in
the models. Management has engaged independent
professionally qualified valuer (the “Valuer™) whose work
has been relied on in the estimation of the fair value
of the land and buildings. Therefore, the valuation is
considered a key audit matter because of the significance
of the judgement and amounts involved.
RZZB-AF+TZA=+—RH  EXEREG2LHKE
FIAAFEEFIERA144,095,00047T - ERERIELE
Rt R AE BIEE T B EE R A EE TR R A SR
ZEANEEN, L RET 2 AFEE - BEEESINE
BYAERBEXMGEMEER]) - WERETERL
A REFZATEE - Bt - HEBRATSH 2 E
Re@BAEMBERSBERETEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESNMEERREETSEHE

Our key audit procedures over valuation of land and
buildings included:
HPE L MEFTEEMELNERETEFEE

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the Valuer.
L ERD ST - se I REBIE -

— Assessing the appropriateness of the work of the

Valuer by making enquiries and considering the
relevance and reasonableness of key assumptions and
methods used, and the relevance and accuracy of the
source data used.

M EREAAT R TIEN S @M RERZ SR
BRERHEENRSIEYE - RAKIERTAE R RIRE
MR R E R o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the 2019
annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continues)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continues)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Hiu Fun

Practising Certificate number: P05709
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Consolidated Income Statement

HEZ

E-NF+-ZRA=+—BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE—N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BIT
(re-presented)
(&%)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HFEREEK
REVENUE PN 5 341,434,375 423,565,768
Cost of sales SHE P AR (266,345,273) (363,227,944)
Gross profit EA 75,089,102 60,337,824
Other income and gains =R NN & 5 10,847,507 14,560,256
Fair value gain on financial asset BEAFEEFABREREZ
at fair value through profit or TREEANFEERE
loss 1,845,132 =
Selling and distribution costs $HE T2 4K 8 Ak AN (24,929,864) (27,059,459)
Administrative and other expenses 17 & H {th & (32,069,009) (33,007,520)
Realised loss on financial asset at BAFEBEABRIEY
fair value through profit or loss TRIEEDSREE (6,397,436) -
Finance costs AR AR 6 (1,094,930) (1,813,977)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR % A 5 F 7 23,290,502 13,017,124
Income tax expense FrigHif 10 (5,726,998) (3,865,644)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REFELEEBK 2ARF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS EisF 17,563,504 9,151,480
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEEEER
Loss for the year from discontinued 3K @ 2 & 1IH & & 21 2 2K
operation FEEE 11 (904,890) (7,926,860)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BATEBAMGEEREE
i A 16,658,614 1,224,620
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BATEBAMGAREE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS AL (i)
OF THE COMPANY
Continuing operations FHBIC A T 17,563,504 9,151,480
Discontinued operation BRILEEER (904,890) (7,926,860)
16,658,614 1,224,620

BRERERERAT
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE BT BT
(re-presented)
(&%)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AARFEEAFGERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS R, (&E)
OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted AR R EE
— from continuing operations — AR BT
(HK cents) GEAL) 6.58 3.43
— from discontinued operation —HERIEREER
(HK cents) (B (0.34) (2.97)
Total I 6.24 0.46

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-F-AFT-ASt-ALEE

Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-NE
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE A 16,658,614 1,224,620
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HitZEUWRA
Items that will not be reclassified to BIrEEHFIBEERZA
profit or loss: BRZIEHE :
Surplus arising from revaluation of land T RAEF 2 B AR
and buildings 2,430,525 16,645,788
Income tax effect FriStis & (677,720) (4,256,567)
1,752,805 12,389,221
Items that may be reclassified HENEHIEEREA
subsequently to profit or loss: BR2IEH :
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEBRES ZE
foreign operations HER (3,009,627) (6,878,794)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ BREALEFEHMEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF (B8]), WA
TAX (1,256,822) 5,510,427
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AABEEAFRIEREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEWAEEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15,401,792 6,735,047
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZF-AF+-A=+—A
At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hF —E=-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIS - RN RE 14 214,273,903 211,573,006
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS LA E K 15 = 10,844,406
Financial asset at fair value BAFEET AER
through profit or loss RV SrEE 17 680,000 680,000
Total non-current assets IEmENE EAET 214,953,903 223,097,412
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Financial asset at fair value A EETAER
through profit or loss R emEE 17 1,845,132 -
Inventories e 18 53,620,905 64,120,558
Prepayments, deposits and other TBFRIE - e kE
receivables fih JE U SR 1B 19 6,100,225 7,217,855
Trade and bills receivables FEUWBRTE K =1 20 73,167,064 87,367,262
Bank balances and cash wITEBRRIE S 21 51,505,394 43,762,395
Total current assets MENEEES 186,238,720 202,468,070
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE
Trade payables FETBR IR 22 36,254,341 44,923,952
Accrued liabilities and other et B E R E bt
payables AR 23 33,812,113 46,704,221
Interest-bearing bank and other HERITREMES
borrowings 24 12,040,876 34,105,228
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 1,460,865 -
Tax payables FEBTIIE 7,682,773 2,535,010
Total current liabilities TmENAEEST 91,250,968 128,268,411
NET CURRENT ASSETS B R EFE 94,987,752 74,199,659
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTBER
LIABILITIES 309,941,655 297,297,071

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (ontinued)

R-ZE-—NF+=-A=+—8
At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)\F
Notes HK$ HK$
B &t I BIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other HERITREMEER
borrowings 24 - 1,704,471
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 939,591 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIAAE 26 22,696,398 22,018,678
Total non-current liabilities EMBI A EEET 23,635,989 23,723,149
Net assets BEFE 286,305,666 273,573,922
EQUITY S
Share capital R& A 27 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves {8 29(a) 259,605,186 246,873,442
Total equity s saE 286,305,666 273,573,922

F53H 2163 FH M ELRAMFEREER
—ECERFE=-f -t AHEEESHERRK
B - WA TIALTRERESE :

These consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2020 and signed on its behalf by

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FEIE A PR
Director Director
5= 55
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_T-NF+-A=+—ALFE
Year ended 31 December 2019
Share Asset  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation ~ Retained  Proposed Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
3 Ed
R ROEEE HABR  EMRE  RBRE REEN BERE  BRAE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
BT BT AT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A-A 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 89,364,811  (3,504,306) 109,495,405 - 273,573,922
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - 16,658,614 - 16,658,614
Other comprehensive income for — REEHMEERA :
the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERRES
translation of foreign operations JERER - - - - (3,009,627) - - (3,009,627)
Surplus arising from revaluation BHRELHRET
of land and buildings, net LERBE
of tax - - - 1,752,805 - - - 1,752,805
Total comprehensive income for the  AEE2ERALE
year - - - 1,752,805 (3,009,627) 16,658,614 - 15,401,792
Transaction with owners: HEFANETZR5
2019 interim dividend paid TRZE-NERERS
(note 12) (M3E12) - - - - - (2,670,048) - (2670,048)
2019 final dividend proposed EIT-NEREBRS
(note 12) (Rt&12) - - - - - (5340,09%) 5,340,096 -
Total transaction with owners ERANETIRDER - - - - - (8,010,144) 5340,09  (2,670,048)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hE+ZFE=1+-H 26700480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *91,117,616 *(6,513,933)*118,143,875 *5340,09% 286,305,666
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

Share Asset  Exchange
Share  premium  Contributed ~ revaluation  fluctuation ~ Retained Total
capital account surplus feserve reserve profits equity
gE EX
RE ROEERE  AARR  ERERE  RIEBE  REEN  EREE
HK§ HKS HKS$ HKS HK$ HK§ HKS
i A AL AT A i B
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\F-A-H 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,051 76975590 3,374,488 108,270,785 266,838,875
Profit for the year KEEEN - - - - - 1224620 1,224,620
Other comprehensive income for the year:  AEEEMZEMA :
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNERRES
foreign operations ZEHET - - - - (6,878,794) - (6,878,79)
Surplus arising from revaluation of land GG RET
and buildings, net of tax LEER - - - 12,389,201 - - 12,389,221
Total comprehensive income for the year NEERRAEE - - - 12389221 (6,878794) 1224620 6,735,047
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\F+-A=1-H 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *89,364811 *(3,504,306)*109,495405 273,573,922

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$259,605,186 & REEUBMRRET ELERFERFRS
(2018: HK$246,873,442) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 4 & f% 1#6259,605,1868 Jo( = T — )\ F :
246,873,442 7T) °
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GERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt s BT BT
(re-presented)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHAERA
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax B ADEF (E18)
— from continuing operations —HEERLER 23,290,502 13,017,124
— from discontinued operation — BB RIS ER (904,890) (7,908,570)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs B B 6 1,094,930 1,813,977
Bank interest income RITHLBWA (285,789) (59,521)
Depreciation of property, plant TE—M%  BEREE
and equipment (excluding right- (BREFAREEN)
of-use assets) 7,071,413 15,079,436
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ME-—FREEE 4,067,985 =
Fair value gain on financial asset at BAFEEFTABRERZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEATEEKE (1,845,132) =
Amortisation of prepaid land TE T Lt & ki gs
lease payments - 297,941
Loss allowance on trade receivables JE Y BRIE R (B 254,979 =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of PEME BERZEZ
property, plant and equipment BB/ () - F58 4,400,004 (346,832)
Provision for impairment loss on VI R Nkt
property, plant and equipment B EE R = 1,855,946
Provision for slow-moving Viihi=Cea =g i I
inventories, net 465,776 1,632,983
37,609,778 25,382,484
Decrease in inventories GFE 2/ 10,655,683 10,406,120
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TRINFRIE « 1R REAEWGKIE
other receivables 2R 791,151 5,326,064
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills FEURBRETE R E ik
receivables 2R/ (Em) 14,046,696 (12,868,004)
Decrease in trade payables FEASBRIE 2 Rl A (9,298,990)  (11,904,713)
Decrease in accrued liabilities and e & B R H Ath FE T FRIE
other payables 2R (13,139,823) (5,433,682)
Cash generated from operations — REXBREEZ
pages 61 Be—$61H 40,664,495 10,908,269
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HEBRERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (ontinued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-AF —E—)N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt sE BT BT
Cash generated from operations — REXBREEZR S
pages 60 — 28608 40,664,495 10,908,269
Interest received EUALE 285,789 59,521
Interest paid BAFE (941,621) (1,506,053)
Interest element on lease liabilities/ HEaRE REBERHZ
finance lease payments PSRt (153,309) (307,924)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded ROBEFEH 40,428 255,194
Overseas taxes paid EAEINTIE (612,844) (871,593)
Net cash flows from operating 4R SE B 7 I s A R E
activities 39,282,938 8,537,414
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING REFBHZRERH
ACTIVITIES
Increase in time deposits with maturity BA={E AR ERZ
over three months byl (23,340,000) =
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE  BELEKE
and equipment (6,356,682) (3,612,073)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWME - BB MERE
property, plant and equipment Fr8 50a 507,195 399,840
Net cash flows used in investing WEEE RS R RRE
activities (29,189,487) (3,212,233)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING REEBH2RER M
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid B E 30 (2,670,048) -
New unsecured bank loans/revolving FEEERTER EEREH
term loans/trust receipt loans B3 ZEER 30 28,909,166 95,319,646
Decrease in discounted bills BEIR =R 7 30 (145,175) (232,427)
Repayment of unsecured instalment EBERERFESHER
loans/bank loans/revolving term BRTER RRAEHER
loans/trust receipt loans EEWIEER 30 (48,761,716) (92,902,528)
New finance leases raised iR ERE 30 = 299,510
Repayment of lease liabilities/finance BEHESE RMEMEENK
lease payments 30 (2,368,019) (5,799,361)
Net cash flows used in financing B EH 2 E e R
activities (25,035,792) (3,315,160)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERREZEERZ(RD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - /IR - %628
page 62 (14,942,341) 2,010,021
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (ontinued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 7 BT BT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRkFEELEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Z OB,/ EhFE
page 61 — %618 (14,942,341) 2,010,021
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzHe kReEEEE
beginning of year 43,762,395 42,285,169
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSH) L FEE
changes, net (654,660) (532,795)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHR2EeREELEHEER
END OF YEAR 21 28,165,394 43,762,395
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Its registered office is located at Units
2304-06, 23rd Floor, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

e  manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
(comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic
components and part); and

e design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products (comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year, except for the
discontinuance as explained in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
land and buildings and financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, which have been measured at revalued
amount/fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

2.1

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEEE)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2018 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year as set out in note 2.2
to the consolidated financial statements. A summary of others
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date
when control is lost.

BRERANE A M 52 2 8 AN &= B AR R 3 170
AERERZHE]EIERTEBHBR
SR BFRAMBHRRIFERESE
BT \FRAUBRRARAZE
ABRRER—H - AEERAEMER
SRR M EBEHN RS M RAM T
2.4 -

mERBEREE

REMBRERBEANRR REREHB
DA Z AR o MR R H K
MBEFEEARBMER - ERA K
SRTBRRE -

IBESERNARIE &R XHMNEE
ARBIERZAEENRA R H i
MEEBEBRYZEIRE - MBARZEE
BAKERGEFE AMESH - I
BT EZIERIER LA -

HE RS

HMARERKBATZ ARSI
2g - BWEEHAEERELZNE
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BERREEZ2E
DISCLOSURES
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/ ANEEERERNATERNEZEEZH
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group. 51/ RET 2 B IS E £ o
Annual Improvements to  2015-2017 Cycle BEMBHREEL —BE—RHFE-F
HKFRSs ZEEBETR R —+FEH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 55 (BB SRS AERERIEZ T
Treatments ZBLZEw®)-2 BEKk
FESE235%
Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits BB ERE19 EERT
SR AER]
HKFRS 16 Leases HEUGHmEEN HE
1658
Annual Improvements Project — 2015-2017 Cycle BV REER  FENREIER : —
E—hFE_FT—+FHAH
HKAS 12: Income tax consequences of payments on financial BEEAEREI125  tERE RS
instruments classified as equity e/ T AR EHERE
The amendments clarify that (a) the income tax consequences ZE B ESQREMEHEERER
of dividends are recognised in profit or loss, other TR I% B &H (R RERR © FT15Rie R
comprehensive income or equity according to where the past FERE R YIERELE S EHEE
transactions or events that generated the distributable profits R HNEBMAELZE - Hit2milkzssiE
were originally recognised and (b) these requirements apply to mPRER S RO)ZEEREEERE
all income tax consequences of dividends as defined in HKFRS 9. RS R A B oY B E IR B TS

BRRAKA -

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant PN EZ (S 5T S 4 A B R R 35 30 (1 (7]
impact on the consolidated financial statements. BATE o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EBERRBEZEE (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements in HKAS 12
Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19: Employee Benefits

The amendments require the use of updated assumptions
to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the reporting period after a change is made to a
plan.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related Interpretations for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It
significantly changes, among others, the lessee accounting
by replacing the dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations created
by all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. For lessor accounting,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently. HKFRS 16
also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees
and lessors.
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EE
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17N EERE c ZE-RERERK
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16: Leases (continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 January 2019 (i.e.
the date of initial application, the “DIA”) using the modified
retrospective approach in which comparative information
has not been restated. Instead, the Group recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as
an adjustment to the balance of retained profits or other
component of equity, where appropriate, at the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical expedient
not to reassess whether a contract was, or contained, a lease
at the DIA and the Group applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
to contracts entered into or changed on or after the DIA that
are identified as leases applying HKFRS 16.

As lessee

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were
classified as operating or finance lease in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for the
leases in accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16
and the Group’s accounting policies applicable from the DIA.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

22 S BERRBKECEE (@)

EFEMBHEERNE 165 : HE(F)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (continued)

22 S BERRBKEEEH (@)

EFEMBHEERE 165 : HE(F)

(ERATN —SEHI D B R L HE R H
=3

REXEREH  AEERENOER
REMENHERREREEENREE
BE HEBEEEERENHEER
S o REBBRZFAEEEERAUT

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases previously classified as operating leases at the DIA,
except for leases for which the underlying asset is of low
value, and the Group applied the following practical expedients

on a lease-by-lease basis.

(a)

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics.

Adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by the
provision for onerous leases recognised immediately
before the DIA by applying HKAS 37, as an alternative to
performing an impairment review at the DIA.

Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
to leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the DIA.

Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use assets at the DIA.

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.

ATHEERTE

(a)

HAAAERUSENEEHES
RABE—BRE -

RERERABH SERHERS
RFER BB ERAE LS 2R
FITRERNEREHEER
EMAREREEE  (FARE
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JIE e
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RERERBEH  BENSSEERL
FEEEAARRREMENEREER
EIN  EREEENREBEZEEERE

At the DIA, except for those that were previously or will be
accounted for as investment property using the fair value
model, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease basis,

measured at either,

(a)

their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had been applied
since the commencement date, but discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the DIA; or

an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised immediately before the DIA.

BUA R -
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities at
the DIA is 3.6%.

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed
applying HKAS 17 at 31 December 2018 and lease liabilities
recognised at the DIA is as follows.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

22 S BERRBKECEE (@)

EFEMBHEERNE 165 : HE(F)

TERATAN — SRR B RS ETHEMHE
(%)

HEABERSB THENRZRENE
WERAABEARERERBRNEEE
RMEYR - -REXEBEHHEAEE
BEXRANNEFHREERTKNES
3.6% °

RZZE-—NF+_A=+—HER®EHS
SR EREI TR E LA ERE
HRERERBRERCEE8ENE
BRAATE o

HK$
BIT
Operating lease commitments as at R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HZ
31 December 2018 ST B R R 918,934
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental 1EEﬁH7¥KTH/\EA§}/\FEﬁH H Hi/y
borrowing rate at the DIA S{EEF =L 884,449
Less: Short-term leases and other leases with 5)32 D SHASRHATHBAR-Z—NF
remaining lease term ending on or before +ZA=+—HxkZREmrEHAb
31 December 2019 HE (743,042)
Add: Liabilities for renewal of the lease by o EREITRESE S EMESEE
applying the practical expedient to use the MafE
hindsight 855,556
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—A—HBHEAEERE 996,963

As lessee — leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group measures the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities at the DIA at the carrying amount
of the lease assets and lease liabilities immediately before that
date measured applying HKAS 17. The Group accounts for
those leases applying HKFRS 16 from the DIA.

As lessee

At the DIA, all right-of-use assets were presented within the
line item “property, plant and equipment” on the consolidated
statement of financial position. Besides, lease liabilities
including those previously presented under “interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings” were shown separately on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which
the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKASs 1 Definition of Material '
and 8

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform '
HKFRSs 7 and 9

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business 2
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 4

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Z Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

8 The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact
on the results of the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHHRBE
POLICIES
Subsidiaries M B A 5
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The WEBARTIAEBEATIES 2 B o WA
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to SEBH—(EE LS 2 ] &5 o) HRAE
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has Efps = AR - WA B BEEZ
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the BRJBNEEZEOHRE  BIKER
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if W B A - MASEREBERE
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one TEAP—IERZIEEGEREE LIRS
or more of the elements of control. B BIASEe SR SR DA

ABARERTA] °

In the Company’'s statement of financial position which is M AR 218 E R IRK AR EE BT
presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is = == AV /NI = b S T Ol o
stated at cost less impairment loss. A e
Related parties BAEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the AEALTAEAEESEAENEARE
Group. B8 o
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@ ZALTBRBUTALHUATALR
related to the Group if that person: FEZRBRWR RN EEEEAT
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) S EREESIAREE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HAKEHEEATLES : X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAKESIAEETARE
the Group or of the parent of the Group. EEBEIKE °
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) ZEEHGEAEASEBEALMN
conditions applies: FFE THIE MR
() The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEKAEEBEEHEREER
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and > d=NGIG 1 E-SST/NE I
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). ERARRARMEARAE

1HREE)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —AEEER —EEmEe
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a HEELE(KS—BFEAEK
member of a group of which the other entity is a ERRIZEBEETKE A A
member). ZEE B EREE) °

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEEEAERE=ZA2
party. BERE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

24 EXSTHERME (&)

Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) —Tlﬁﬁmﬁ%_ﬁﬁ%z/a\
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ﬁ}% Ffﬁjj EBRZE
—HEBZEERR -
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) BEEERBAASEEIEKRE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity @ﬁ?ﬁLZEﬁf B B R T

related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(vi)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(viii)

R BEBR RN TS o fiw
$§%I$%@EE%+¥U ii]
REE B R B E AR & H
REEFR -

AREEX@MEMLALTE
s R

EA( Y)VBATIA A H iR '
BESEAVENXEZER

(jz:z,éiﬁ;'LZt AZEE

EEEIKE o

ZERUZERMBREE
EAK B RR]AAEEHA
SEBRRREETIEZEE
AB R -

AT 2B AR BB HETT

L Hh

SRERALTREZAL

TEIZ

FREKEILBIE -

(a)

(b)

AL FRMEBRRERH

AL ZRBEFRERH 2 TR

54
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or () ZALTHZATZEBIREE
domestic partner. MTRE o
In the definition of a related party, an associate includes EREATHES @ B2 N0 e iEx
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes LB AT r MEBRLESREZESD

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

EMB AR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting
purposes, from the rest of the Group. It represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being
the fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations
are performed frequently to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property, plant
and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. Decrease in valuation are first offset
against increase on earlier valuations in respect of the same
asset and thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the deficit previously charged and thereafter to revaluation
reserve.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

24 EXSHHERME (&)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Before 1 January 2019, as the Group’s lease payments for
its leasehold land and buildings cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements at the inception of
the lease because similar land and buildings are not sold or
leased separately, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 2% t0 2.7%
Land lease premium 2.7%
Office premises 33.33%
Leasehold improvements 2.5% to 30%
Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 30%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each reporting period.

Y3 - BB KR (E)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of
a revaluated asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Prepaid land lease payments

Before 1 January 2019, prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
From 1 January 2019, those payments are accounted for as
right-of-use assets and presented as land lease premium within
property, plant and equipment.

Leases

Applicable from 1 January 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost except for
leasehold land and buildings, which comprises

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case
depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the
underlying asset).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

As lessee (continued)

Right-of-use asset related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at revalued amount, details of which is set
out under property plant and equipment paragraph above.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and
by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee,
the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other
than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the
Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount
rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount
of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to
the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2019

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group are accounted for as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. At
the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as finance lease
obligation. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated income statement so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
term.

Rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and derecognition (continued)

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such
trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction
price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory
FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv)
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing them, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
annual reporting period following the change in the business
model (the “reclassification date”).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHEBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMIEE)
Financial assets (continued) TEEEE)
1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1) HEEKAGTEC B E
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets EEMEBERSS TNHMEKRER
both of the following conditions and is not designated as I R $8 FE A ¥RFVPL - Bl 32 8 §5 K
at FVPL: REHE -
(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is () EHENESEXBORE
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual BELMEENREA HNR S
cash flows; and mE Rk
(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to (il EEHGEHKRIETEARESL
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and ReRe sSLRENEE
interest on the principal amount outstanding. BAERKEERE ZFE
AN &
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently BB AT ENSREEH %
measured using the effective interest method and are KRAERMNE A2 WATR
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from B ABE RIEERIEEB
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation BEEMKZE R EEREBRERE
process are recognised in profit or loss. R o
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include REBREHEKAGTENEHE
bank balances and cash, trade and bills receivables and EDRBRTESKRLERES  BUWEE
deposits and other receivables. BERFERIES REAERRIE o
2) Financial assets at FVPL 2) ZFVPLZ 2 EE
These investments include financial assets that are not % E B B FE T JE F B £ B AN B
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including held FVOCIEFEMEMEE @ BIEF1E
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial B E M B RTERE R E &RFVPL
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a contingent consideration arrangement in a business LR EIFHEB S G 2R
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial REZHFEEANSREE L E
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FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant EWER S EIR B R S E SR E &
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include any dividend or interest earned on the financial BEAREZFE - oMEAFE
assets. B8R - I REEEKE R
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

2) Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVPL include
club membership and forward currency contracts.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements apply in
accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments
as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial instrument, except in the case of Mandatory
FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group); or
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Definition of default (continued)

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
(i) it has a low risk of default;

(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

As detailed in note 35(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, other receivables are determined to have low
credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies the
practical expedient not to account for the significant financing
components, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidences that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into
account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and loans and borrowings including interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less
any estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been generally within three months of maturity at acquisition,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For classification in the consolidated statements of financial
position, bank balances and cash represent assets similar in
nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess whether
there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as
an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at revalued amount in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance to the
accounting policy relevant to that asset.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately, except where the relevant asset
is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase in
accordance to the accounting policy relevant to the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Group operates and generated taxable
income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group comprises
sales of precision parts and components and consumer
electronic products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods promised
in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance
obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods that are substantially the
same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the
following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good either on its own
or together with other resources that are readily available
to the customer (i.e. the good is capable of being
distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good to the customer
is separately identifiable from other promises in the
contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good is distinct
within the context of the contract).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e.
an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as)
the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as legal
title, physical possession, right to payment, significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sales of precision parts and components and consumer
electronic products are recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered
to customers and the title is passed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding
any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a
customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.

For sales of precision parts and components and consumer
electronic products, it is common for the Group to receive from
the customer the whole or some of the contractual payments
when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue
recognition for such transactions). The Group recognises a
contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During that
period, any significant financing components, if applicable, will
be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as
accrued unless the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the entitlement of relevant employees to the
award is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any non-
market vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the vesting
period, the number of share options that is expected to vest
ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior periods is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of review, with a corresponding adjustment
to the reserve within equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/
or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the
minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the
unmodified award, provided as the original terms of the award
are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of
modification, is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. Share-based payment transactions
in which the Company grants share options to subsidiaries’
employees are accounted for as an increase in value of
investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position which is eliminated on consolidation.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or
the counterparty renders the services.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

24 EXSHHERME (&)

URHB <Nz (&)

ERRENEE B RIFEXNER BB
ARTTE - ABERBRERERER
SEHERSREEN

ERETERMEEE S RIERMER
EHE RRERE - MR = R R
IR R AR RERR o AT - W FESHAY
WA E B RE - WHEE QR
HE BB RHRB - RIZIAE R
P& on_E BR Pl B4R A5 JR B $REMENIE AT
RREZIE - ARRRTEMBARESRE
PR PARAD S 2 R B WHNER B A AR
BARSAR 2% o BB A BIHR B (B EAIE AN
WHkR B BRIKSH

HIFEE ATETUBREE 2 Rih
2 22 SR P UER S dn S IR 15 2 2P B
BFtE - R FEETRER EATHIE
AT AR ETANATEEFTE -
EFRERAT  @RAKERESEML
XU RERSEE B R EER

=
£ °

AEEREERNE - RTEBREZ
BENE - RRBBEINRODES -

BEEF
FERES HEF

i FREIEAL  sHFR - RERRX
BRAGHEIER M IEEER/A KA - R
EERHEHBRSE 2 FR R -

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER




e MR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
Hong Kong for all of its eligible employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. The termination benefits for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
Mainland China are charged to profit or loss when they
become payable based on the requirement of the labour law
in the Mainland China.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
by entities in the Group at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date of the transactions first qualifies for
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the consolidated income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into Hong
Kong dollars, the presentation currency. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period
and their income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at the average exchange rates. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key source of estimation uncertainty
Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy on
inventories based on ageing given that the inventories are not
subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent technological
changes. However, as a significant portion of the working
capital is devoted to inventories, operational procedures have
been in place to monitor this risk. The Group reviews the
inventory ageing listing on a periodical basis for those aged
inventories. This involves comparison of the carrying value of
the aged inventory items with the respective net realisable
value. The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is
required to be made in the consolidated financial statements
for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In addition, physical
counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in
order to determine whether any allowance needs to be made
in respect of obsolete and defective inventories identified.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries has
suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and
follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting policies.
The assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment/right-
of-use assets

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment requires
an estimation of recoverable amounts of the relevant property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets or the respective
cash generating units (“CGU") to which the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets belong, which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal. If
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the relevant assets or the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The discount rate represents rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or the CGU for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or there is
a downward revision of future estimated cash flows due to
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, an additional
impairment loss may arise. During the reporting period, the
Group had disposed all the impaired property, plant and
equipment in precision parts and components segment with
associated impairment losses amounted to HK$1,855,946. At
31 December 2019, the Group had provision for impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment in consumer electronic
products segment of HK$338,128.

Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in
the consolidated statement of financial position, which are
assessed annually by management with reference to valuations
performed by independent professionally qualified valuer. In
determining the revalued amounts, the valuer has based on the
method of valuations which involve certain estimates. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuations is reflective of the current market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the land and buildings at 31 December
2019 were HK$144,095,000 (2018: HK$147,994,000).

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

RAEEsHhE KAl (2

ME BERRE ERAEEEZ
B

EERECHEESAEAMTEBEYZE -
B KR EAEEENEMBSR
CELBEM([BREEEEMN]) 2K
e EABEEEQFEEREE
BAZEEE - WEEADRER—E
BEDRERE @ AIZERER B EGFTE
AR EIS5E o W T eefaEtERIEE 2T
WKEl£%E - AASEEEEEEMBR
CEABMNZAIKREIESEE - FREER
BERAEBRGFEHEEAEEEE
FMEEABMN HRRSRERAHE
TR EPGTEIRE - FrIRETIRERE
ATEEREBERTAFHERKRRERE
BTN EERRSEEEN 2 FERR
ZTHTHE c EEBARKRERELR
TEHR - AN EE RIER TR TFIEE)
MTHARKRMGEIEERE - BIAJEE
AEREINREBE - R B®RERA -
REEE LSBT ERET
EREZE - WE K& - MEER
BB 18 %0 51,855,946/6 7L - R - T —
NWE+—A=+—H EFEEREH
ZWE - BEREEZBESRIER
338,128/B 7T °

T REFEE

AEEN T REFREDE  BEK
FEAHSHEBERERE M BRAERF
R - ZATEEESFTHERERE
RBVABEREXEGHEMET ZMHE
HE e REEMER  HEMERY
EETHFZ2HEELE GREERS
B ARRIESSERAE - WENZ
HEERMERTL - R=ZF—NF
+—A=+—8 £t EkEFZER
8 £144,095,000/8 o( =& — )\ & :
147,994,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade and other receivables by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate.
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables. Details of the key
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in
note 35(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

RS ET R A (&)

BFHFEBRZBRRE

AEEEEEEASERABBRRER
(BRENRBREBEREBEX) G E
WERTRR R B - Bt R E T
Tl R IREMERAEENESRE
- BETSER R BERESHRAOF
MEMEfAE - ETRRERAETR - %E
KT EREFERNERE - BHEER
EBERAEMERNEEREMNEARE
ZFIEE N IR A MR RMIESS(C)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION rESFER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into BEMER  AEBRERBESENERD
business units based on its products and has three reportable DEEBEMN AL TZArHRELE
operating segments as follows: pax -l

(a) the precision parts and components segment comprises
the manufacture and sale of precision parts and
components comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and
plastic components and parts;

(b) the consumer electronic products segment comprises
the design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
long term investments, together with corporate income
and expense items.

Management, the chief operating decision makers, monitors
the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment results, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax except that bank interest income and
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the cost of sales and are eliminated on consolidation.

) BETHEREENEREE
BETHE - BIEEE - SRR
BREBTE

—

(b)) EFHERBERBER  BE&E
LREEETFHEMR  BREE
AR REMER &

(0 BBWREGBEREEASERY
BRENMERRNBARIHIER -

EEE(ERRLRRE)HAREZL
BB REDRETES  MELA
AR EMKRRFEZRE - DBK
BIRBEAIRES B2 RAE(RBEH
ERFECERBRATEMNZETE) TR
Al o EABBRRANG A DB BUARS
B2 BRBANE R ST E - HIRTTA B
ALBERATBEERZLAE -

REDRHE REN T2 EHER A
17> WHEARAIREH -
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

The consumer electronic products segment was discontinued
during the reporting period. Information about the
discontinued operation is provided in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements. The comparative figures in
the consolidated income statement have been represented to
disclose the results of consumer electronic products segment

as discontinued operation.

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

=

EoEER @)
EFHEMBERNBMAERLERER
% BRERLIEEXBHNENCDES
MRE M BHmERMEN - REFER
ZRABEBRBFEREFHEMRBERIN
XENECRIEREXBENZS -

BE_Z2-NF+-A=T-HLEE

Discontinued

operation
Continuing operations B
BESEEK REER
Precision Consumer
parts and Corporate electronic
components  and others Sub-total products Total
BEEHG SHREM Nt BEFHER st
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Sales to external customers ~ ¥/NE P& 341,434,375 - 341434375 4,146,522 345,580,897
Reportable segment revenue S 3EREWA K MA
and revenue 341,434,375 - 341,434,375 4,146,522 345,580,897
Segment results: DEEE 27,218,464 (3,117,880) 24,100,584 (905,831) 23,194,753
Reconciliation: HED -
Bank interest income RATFSIA 284,848 941 285,789
Finance costs AERA (1,094,930) - (1,094,930)
Profit before tax B A 7 23,290,502 (904,890) 22,385,612
Other segment information: E15E&EH :
Other income and gains, net  Ef A Rz - BRIER
of foreign exchange gain Wz 548 6,882,544 40,563 6,923,107 15,527 6,938,634
Depreciation of property, &M% HE k&
plant and equipment (BEREEEN)
(excluding right-of-use
assets) (7,017,567) (53,846)  (7,071,413) - (7,071,413)
Depreciation of right-of-use  #7&E —(EFEEE
assets (959,814) (3,108,171) (4,067,985) - (4,067,985)

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RBEQPBER(H)

Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued) BZ—Z—hE+=-A=+—HLEFE
(&)
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations 551
BESEEK LeEk
Precision Consumer
parts and Corporate electronic
components  and others Sub-total products Total
FEEHt SHRHM M EFHER @t
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other segment information: EftiAEER : (42)
(continued)
Loss on disposal of items ~ (H&EME  BEREELZ
of property, plant and B 38
equipment, net (4,400,004) - (4,400,004) - (4,400,004)
Provision for slow-moving ~ #EFE & FE
inventories, net (465,776) - (465,776) - (465,776)
Provision for loss allowance  EUERER(E
on trade receivables (254,979) - (254,979) - (254,979)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation T RIET B Bt/
of land and buildings (BB)FA/Gnk) &
credited/(debited) to other 2 EURA
comprehensive income 3,255,095 (824,570) 2,430,525 - 2,430,525
Lease payments under short- fEHIfAE #ﬂ#”*&ﬁ%
term leases on office ZHEHY
premises and factories (810,282) (187,601) (997,883) (41,029)  (1,038,912)
Lease payments under low- (EEEEEZHEFR
value asset leases (31,033) - (31,033) - (31,033)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), TEX Mz /(B18) %%
net 3,964,279 (39,879) 3,924,400 39,213 3,963,613
Capital expenditure BARY (6,304,920) (51,762)  (6,356,682) - (6,356,682)

Fair value gain on financial ~ BRATFEE ABER

asset at fair value through 7 AT EENE

profit or loss 1,845,132 - 1,845,132 - 1,845,132
Realised loss on financial A F(BE AEHE

asset at fair value through ~ ZBEEER

profit or loss (6,397,436) - (6,397,436) - (6,397,436)
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Year ended 31 December 2018

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HBLFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

KE|ER(#)

BE—2—\F+-A=+—ALFE

Discontinued

operation
Continuing operations BEIE
Precision Consumer
parts and Corporate electronic
components and others Sub-total products Total
BETHG  BHREMD PNt EFHER et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Sales to external customers ~ E9NREHE 423,565,768 - 423,565,768 40,088,835 463,654,603
Intersegment sales AEHEHE 857,051 - 857,051 55,208 912,259
Reportable segment revenue SBIRERA 424,422,819 - 424,422,819 40,144,043 464,566,862
Reconciliation: A -
Elimination of intersegment A5 1K E 2 H ik
sales (857,051) (55,208) (912,259)
Revenue WA 423,565,768 40,088,835 463,654,603
Segment results: PTEEE: 17,587,605 (2,812,931) 14,774,674 (7,911,664) 6,863,010
Reconciliation: e
Bank interest income HRITFI S WA 56,427 3,094 59,521
Finance costs EE %S (1,813,977 - (1,813,977
Profit before tax BRA AR R 13,017,124  (7,908,570) 5,108,554
Other segment information: H#t2EE#
Other income and gains, net  EHaU A JJzs  BREE 5
of foreign exchange gain Wz B4 9,379,755 287,752 9,667,507 1,556,391 11,223,898
Depreciation neE (11,783,683)  (3,295,338)  (15,079,021) (415)  (15,079,436)

BRERERERAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinued)

HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESBERE)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) BT \F+-_A=1+—HILEE
(%)
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations BAIE
RE eSS meEn
Precision Consumer
parts and Corporate electronic
components and others Sub-total products Total
RETHH  ABREM Nt EFEEm st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
o BT BT BT BT
Other segment information: HfiAE&ER : (&)
(continued)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of  HEME BiREk&EZ
items of property, plant (B18)/ W 58
and equipment, net (50,934) - (50,934) 397,766 346,832
Provision for slow-moving B #EFE&E  FE
inventories, net (427,566) - (427,566) (1,205,417) (1,632,983)
Surplus on revaluation of L RIEFSH 2 A%
land and buildings credited T AEZERA
to other comprehensive
income 5,455,788 11,190,000 16,645,788 - 16,645,788
Amortisation of prepaid land AT 170 &7t
lease payments (297,941) - (297,941) - (297,941)
Minimum lease payments ~ A2FAELIREF 2
under operating leases on &M
land and buildings (4,627,690) (176,100) (4,803,790) (378,221) (5,182,011)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), B3 Mz /(B18) B8
net 5,670,766 (778,017) 4,892,749 641,788 5,534,537
Provision for impairment W BiE KRG RE
losses on property, plant BiEEE
and equipment (1,855,946) - (1,855,946) = (1,855,946)
Mainland China staff EBR 5 B Pn < 1 B ARE
compensation due to EIfESR
closure of factories (13,392,309) - (13,392,309) (2,512,734)  (15,905,043)
Capital expenditure BARY (3,603,743) (8,330) (3,612,073) - (3,612,073)
Information about a major customer FEEFER
Revenue of HK$103,981,691 (2018: HK$106,379,226) was RN [Z $£103,981,6918 (=T — )\
derived from a single customer of the precision parts and % : 106,379,226/ 70 ) WL A + Th 2K
components segment that contributing over 10% of the BRI IEN—ZEF » WhHA
Group’s revenue for the year. SENBAZRI0% °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESBERE)

Geographical information i & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HIEFKA
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(re-presented)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEQSEER
Hong Kong &5 9,339,505 27,269,903
Mainland China R B K e 47,568,797 80,770,576
Japan and other Asian countries B ZS & B A g5 M B R 180,913,351 173,487,957
North America JEZEM 41,731,088 40,634,151
South America EEIN 6,428,479 8,218,856
Europe B 47,248,205 87,274,578
Other countries HFHx 8,204,950 5,909,747
341,434,375 423,565,768
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER 4,146,522 40,088,835
Total revenue AN 345,580,897 463,654,603

The revenue information above is based on the
geographical location of the customers.

A ERAERHIZE P i &

e

(b) Non-current assets (b) FESREIEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EFE
HK$ HK$
&I BT

Continuing operations BESEER
Hong Kong BB 72,782,675 76,711,487
Mainland China R B K 140,758,447 145,579,088
Other countries H A HZK 732,781 126,837
214,273,903 222,417,412

The non-current assets information above is based on the
geographical location of assets and excludes the financial

asset at FVPL.

N EFERBEEERIZEEME
EE D BRBEIEIRFVPLZ ©

MEE -

BRHEERZERERAR

—g-AEER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is

5. WA - Htlg A R Wz

WAIEAFERHETmAE
BRRERE ST

AEERA - EA YA R Wz

FFEH

bRy

as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(re-presented)
(&%)
Revenue from contracts with customers & 78 B 3% 3 45 % B 55 1555 85 & X 3¢
within the scope of HKFRS 15: BEFEHZBA :
Continuing operations BESEER
Sale of goods BEmiHE 341,434,375 423,565,768
Discontinued operation Pl L
Sale of goods EmiEeE 4,146,522 40,088,835
345,580,897 463,654,603
Other income and gains: Hig A B :
Continuing operations BESEER
Bank interest income HRITH BN 284,848 56,427
Tooling charge income REWA 443,929 389,134
Sale of scrap BERISHE 3,007,889 5,665,308
Sale of samples ERNE 2,172,286 3,191,297
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEE - MENREZEE -
plant and equipment, net SHEE - (50,934)
Foreign exchange gain, net R e 2= 3,924,400 4,892,749
Incentive received* 2 UG BE B FR > 350,110 198,427
Refund of excess payment for REIZ AR AREREES
“Employment Security Funds for the
Disabled” 516,727 -
Others HAith 147,318 217,848
10,847,507 14,560,256
Discontinued operation BRIIEEER 54,740 2,198,179
10,902,247 16,758,435

Total revenue, other income and gains #2Ug A - E Uk A K& U

356,483,144 480,413,038
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

The amount of revenue recognised for the year that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
is HK$8,706,430 (2018: HK$10,236,308) and HK$165,130
(2018: HK$460,247) for continuing operations and
discontinued operation respectively.

* During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received an
allowance of “Granting Support in Respect of the Unemployment
Insurance to Enterprises for Stablising Employment” for RMB145,840
(approximately HK$166,258) from Social Security Bureau, and
Incentive fund for the steady growth of foreign trading for
RMB161,274 (approximately HK$183,852) from Mainland China
government. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
received an electricity charges relief of RMB166,746 (approximately
HK$198,427) from Shenzhen Power Supply Co., Limited.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

5. WA - Hb A R Wzt (48)

AEEBEAZWACEBERENZE
#8 E/58,706,4308 (=T — N\F :
10,236,308 7T ) }2.165,130/8 7t ( =&
— )\ : 460,247 70 ) 2 Bl 3k B # 4&
AT BRI TS o

* BE-ZT-hEF+-A=t—HL#F
ER Ai‘%@mi@%lia%u& BB
KRERBIIFOEBEMAAEMR
145,840 A R ¥ (#9166,258% 7T ) K it rh
BERAFKE —EHENERR B/
161,274 AR ¥ (#183,852/8 L) B E =
T N\FE+-—A=+—HLEFE x&£EH
WRIMEERER AT —ESER R
38166,746 N HE (#9198,427787T)

6. BEMA
BEKAH AT

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Continuing operations HESEER
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ~RAFANEE ZRITER K
wholly repayable within five years BEXFE 941,621 1,506,053
Interest on lease liabilities/finance leases FHEBE REHEF 8
(note 25) (Mi5E25) 153,309 307,924
1,094,930 1,813,977

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBANER

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

7 5 8 B A B M AR

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT I
(re-presented)
(&)
Continuing operations FEREER
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRXZ(BRESEHE
remuneration — note 8)*: — P EE8)* -
Wages and salaries TERFG® 98,413,434 121,569,268
Mainland China staff compensation E Mg BT 2 R B KR B TA(E
due to closure of factories i - 13,392,309
Contributions to retirement benefit RINERFH B
schemes 11,694,758 14,232,747
110,108,192 149,194,324
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 265,879,497 362,800,378
Provision for slow-moving inventories, 1 & - JFEE*
net* 465,776 427,566
Auditor’s remuneration PGS 1,169,887 1,099,484
Depreciation of property, plant and TE-—ME  BERERE
equipment (excluding right-of-use (FREAEEE)"
assets)* 7,071,413 15,079,021
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* e —(TREEE 4,067,985 =
Provision for impairment losses on M - BEREEZ
property, plant and equipment BB EIE R - 1,855,946
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE S + 3 H & FREE
payments - 297,941
Minimum lease payments under KERE T RIEFZ
operating leases on land and buildings* &7 zk* - 4,803,790
Lease payments under short-term leases SEHAERAERHEZ
on office premises and factories* HE A 997,883 -
Lease payments under low-value asset (REBEEE 2 S8
leases* 31,033 -
Provision for loss allowance on trade FEW AR IBR (B
receivables 254,979 -
Loss on disposal of items of property,  H&EWE « BE MR EZEIE
plant and equipment, net SRR 4,400,004 50,934
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBEBDZER ()

#  The staff cost amounting to HK$86,460,865 (2018: HK$119,761,273), t ARFEE Y B TR X 586,460,865 7T
depreciation amounting to HK$7,198,100 (2018: HK$12,129,716), —Z — N F:119,761,273% T )~
and lease payments under short-term leases on office premises T B 587,198,100 (=& — N\ F -
and factories amounting to HK$811,163 (2018: minimum lease 12,129, 716870 ) KRG HBAEHAE
payments under operating leases on land and buildings amounting W E 2 M ERIEES11,1638 L( =T —
to HK$4,286,922) for the year are included in “Cost of sales” in the NE : REFELHEBF LR
consolidated income statement respectively. ¥84,286,922%8 T ) E D BB B4R A T

BRZIEERE]IRA-

i The provision for slow-moving inventories for the year is included in & AEEZHHEHFEREBEEBEELRE T

“Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement. &R [HEKAR]A -
8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8. HHRESENEHN

DIRECTORS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules st A ik - A E YNGR Ll kst

and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BZEEMEWT :

(a) Director’'s emoluments (a) EEB<
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) BUEHITESE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REZAXN TBILIERT
during the year were as follows: EE2BE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—)\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Kung Fan Cheong HLES 333,936 333,936
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph = 333,936 333,936
Mak Kwai Wing BELE 333,936 333,936
1,001,808 1,001,808
There were no other emoluments payable to the NEE AW EN T IBSLIEHTT
independent non-executive directors during the year EEHMMES(ZFE— )\ F :
(2018: Nil). ) o

BRERERERAT 1171
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8. FHESTEINER#®)
DIRECTORS (continued)
(a) Director’'s emoluments (continued) (a) ESE& (&)
(i) Executive directors (i) BITEE
Contributions
to retirement
Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries honus schemes  allowances remuneration
BIREA
e i MiERd S =0)-13 s
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2019 “E-1f
Executive directors: #HiEE:
Lai Pei Wor TR - 2,689,362 795,668 18,000 50,000 3,553,030
Chan Yau Wah [y - 815,100 - - 50,000 865,100

- 3504462 795,668 18,000 100,000 4,418,130

2018 EN\%
Executive directors: HTES:
Lai Pei Wor TREA = 2,585,921 573,798 18,000 60,000 3,237,119
Chan Yau Wah e = 2,133,807 626,456 - 59,722 2,819,985
- 4719,728 1,200,254 18,000 119,722 6,057,704
There was no arrangement under which a director REERNTESEHFEBITHA
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any S RE L [R B N E (] HE -
remuneration during the year.
(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour (b) LEEAZTHZAZENR - £8
of directors RREMRS
There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in Vi NN AV = S =N 3 ISV AR £
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered EUESEATSTAZER  EE
into or subsisted during the year (2018: Nil). RREMRG(ZE—N\F: &) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8. EHEERANEN#)

DIRECTORS (continued)

(c) Directors’ material interest in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a connected entity of the director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2018:
Nil).

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9.

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two
(2018: two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2018: three) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

() EZERXRS  REFGHZE
RS

REZER EFARREAFER
SARFEANEMEHE  BEFE
RRARMER—HBRARBER
ZEARS  ZHRAEHNAAR
REEXEEZHETENHES
BEERAMRZEAER(ZF
—NE ) -

AuEREHES

rEERfUZSFHEEBEML(ZE
—\F : MELATES - FHEEIRN
EXHE8 c R T = (ZF—N\F : =
)RSHZIFEFES 2FMFR W
T

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits ~ EZAN# 4 - 28 R EWFIZS
in kind 3,353,558 3,224,572
Discretionary bonus BB FEAL 856,072 819,511

Contributions to retirement RIREFFHEIE K

benefit schemes 36,000 36,000
4,245,630 4,080,083

The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is
within the following bands:

REFZFEEREE ZFMATEARL
™~

Number of individuals

EEAY
2019 2018
—g-NE  —E)N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #£%51,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L %2,000,0007 7T 1 1
3 3

BRERERERAT
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

10. INCOME TAX 10. FTB%

The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime was
signed and gazetted. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying group
entity are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxes on assessable profits outside Hong Kong have been
provided on the estimated assessable profits for the year, in
respect of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong, at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

ZE—tFRBUBET) (FE75) 150
BER([EHESR]) 3| AFIBFHER K
HIE R RTIE - RIBFISHRERAR
fl - A EREEEEE2,000,000%5 T
2 i F ¥ R B R 8.25% R Bt 0 1 R B
2,000,000/ 7T 2 ' F 1§ 2 1 %£16.5%
R NEEFEHREMEH 2 EH
BB 2 m S BB RS — T 16.5%
i o

BBRINERDUSE R IAD A FE
EF RS M A RIBEA R EF BRI
REMEERLAER 2 F AR REE -

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT P IT
(re-presented)
(E31)
Continuing operations BESEER
Current — Hong Kong NE— BB
Charge for the year REFZH 3,551,650 2,886,205
Under provision in prior years FE RS 1,182,719 =
Current — outside Hong Kong ARH] — H/BIEIN
Charge for the year RELZH 921,426 798,446
Under provision in prior years EErIRRE 71,203 180,993
Tax expense from continuing operations 48 4R & 375 2 T 1B X 5,726,998 3,865,644
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Current — outside Hong Kong INER — BHAESN
Under provision in prior years T EFREE - 18,290
Tax expense from discontinued operation B4R |[F4&E & ¥ 75 2 FiIER > - 18,290
Total tax expense for the year REEFHIERZ 5,726,998 3,883,934
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRE® ()
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before ZRBARARAR MERZHKTE QA
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the _Mﬂ’jﬂ;‘f%l&ﬂ’][@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂZiiiﬁ
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are operated to KT EHMHRIER T EHIBRY 2 B
the tax expense is as follows: PO
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
(re-presented)
(&71)
Continuing operations BESEER
Profit before tax B 35 B A 23,290,502 13,017,124
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% I AFEHE16.5% 2 FiE
(2018: 16.5%) —ZF—N\F :16.5%) 3,842,933 2,147,826
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax rates K157 2= iR 4 il & 5722
regime (165,000) (165,000)
Effect of different rates for companies A A& &N E b Bl AR R B TR B
operating in other jurisdictions R 245,856 282,222
Income not subject to tax i ON (756,481) (300,698)
Expenses not deductible for tax ANA R A 2 X 400,009 67,861
Unrecognised temporary differences*  RAERZ EhIE=FE* (523,192) 2,562,638
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 23 LA B AR FERR 2 F 18 518
losses - (299,084)
Under provision in prior years TS 1,253,922 180,993
Tax losses not recognised REERZFIBEE 1,765,509 1,995
Others HAh (336,558) (613,109)
Tax expense for the year REFHRIEAR 5,726,998 3,865,644
& The unrecognised temporary differences for 2018 mainly arose from * TE-N\FEEZABRZERES
the provision for Mainland China staff compensation due to the 2 FZEABFERRAZREARES THE
closure of a factory. &2 BEmS B
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

M. CRIESEXETR

R-Z-AEMA=1H  AEEER
2HEXIETHERAREE FEERER
LEBIERET BENHES FHER
EMEE - WARENR -_ZT—hF—A
+tHARESEeE LESAARES
o HBETEMD SHRIEEEER
ZENEFEFETNK - BE=ZT—
NERZE-—NF+ZA=+—HF 1t
EERIEEEXBENEERERFRE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 30 April 2019, the Group ceased the operation of the
subsidiaries engaged in design, manufacture and sale of
consumer electronic products. The decision was approved by
the directors of the Company at a meeting of the Board of
Directors held on 17 January 2019. The discontinuation of
segment of consumer electronic products was completed in
the third quarter of 2019. The results and net cash flow of the
discontinued operation for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 are summarised as follows:

AT

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue PN 4,146,522 40,088,835
Cost of sales SHE A (4,688,586)  (40,985,795)
Gross loss [E1E (542,064) (896,960)
Other income and gains H AU A K W zs 54,740 2,198,179
Selling and distribution costs SHE RACSHA A (576,410) (4,351,148)
Administrative and other expenses THREMER 158,844 (4,858,641)
Loss before tax BR 7% Bl 5 18 (904,890) (7,908,570)
Income tax expense PS5t 5 < - (18,290)

Loss after tax and net loss attributable B 4% F48 & 28 Er{h ZNE [E 518
to discontinued operation (904,890) (7,926,860)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E=-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Net cash flows RE MR

Operating activities LIRS (2,027,101) (3,717,334)
Investing activities KEEE (32,563) 1,897,766
Financing activities B EEE) (145,175) (232,427)
Total cash flows IRE ke sa (2,204,839) (2,051,995)
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

12. DIVIDEND 12. BB
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Attributable to the current year: RAFER A :

Proposed final dividend — HK2 cents BEERABRE -SRI ER2E
(2018: Nil) per ordinary share (Z=2—N\F : |®) 5,340,096 —

Interim dividend paid — HK1 cent S AR B — B AR E AR 1AL
(2018: Nil) per ordinary share ZZT—)\F : E) 2,670,048 =
8,010,144 -

REFRBFARSAGEEATRRE
AEAR O - HAEE -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13.
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

ERREEAFEEBRER,
(B#8)
BREAREERT,(BE) TIRER
RAEEA AFTEAREREEN, (B1R) R

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is

based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary REEARNDBRITINETEAL @IREE T

shares in issue during the year. =
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. "R BAFEEAFEERER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued) (B8E) =)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per FREAREERF(EE) TEE A
share are based on: T&EHE :
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(re-presented)
(&%)
Earnings/(loss) BRI (&18)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the 78 2 Bl #E & A Fr {5 % Al (E518)
Company used in the basic and diluted AR ESREAREERF

earnings/(loss) per share calculation: (E518):
— Continuing operations - RS ET 17,563,504 9,151,480
— Discontinued operation - BARIFEEE (904,890) (7,926,860)
16,658,614 1,224,620
Shares &v

Weighted average number of ordinary NG 8 N B 21T 2 It F 15 8%
shares in issue during the year used HERARFTEERERNRE SR
in the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) ~ #J,/(/&518)

per share calculation 267,004,800 267,004,800

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted A E BB EE SN TR R —
earnings/(loss) per share was the same as basic earnings/(loss) NERZZE—N\FEHNERERARN
per share in 2019 and 2018. (BR) BERESRF(FBE)ER -
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BMERRKE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Land lease Office Plant and office Motor

buildings  improvements premium premises  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total

THHEE B £ERM
THRET HELE &R HAE  BERES NERfE hE - EE] @it
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT B B B BT BT

31 December 2019 “E-AE
t=A=t-A

At31 December 2018 and ~ R=B-\&

1 January 2019; TZA=t-BR

“F-NE

-R-R:
Cost o valuation e 147,994,000 47,440,871 - - 120125141 24812995 4,955,105 56,245,942 401,574,054
Accumulated depreciation  2HTE - (22,084,267) - - (85413941)  (22073836)  (4183,062)  (56,245942) (190,001,048)

At beginning of the year - RAEE - LA A
upon adoption of HKFRS 16 #2815 16%
(Note 14(a) (P14 - - 11133305 996,963 - - - - 12,130,268

Net carrying amount FHEE 147,994,000 25,356,604 11,133,305 996,963 34,711,200 2,739,159 172,083 - 23703274

Reconciliation of carrying ~ HZ=F-NE
amount - year ended TZA=T-RLEE

31 December 2019 REFERN
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n%E-A-A 147,994,000 25,356,604 11,133,305 996,963 34,711,200 2,739,159 112,083 - 223703274
Additions HE - 5,323,053 - - 710,086 323,543 - - 6,356,682
Disposals et~ - - - - (4,904,749) (2,450) - - (4,907,199)
Depreciation & (5,345,765)  (1,315,923) (288,899) (306,727)  (3,124,545) (650,149) (107,390) - (11,139,398)
Surplus on revaluation ERHIA

credited to other £ 2EBA

comprehensive income 2,430,525 - - - - - - - 2,430,525
Exchange realignment B A% (983,760) (515,158) (145,276) 3n (480,219) (34,181) (11,760) - (2,169,981)

At31 December 2019, et~ R=5-1%
carrying amount T-A=t-H"
FHEE 144,095,000 28,848,576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2,375,922 652,893 - 214273903

At 31 December 2019: RZE-NF

t2A=t+-R:
Cost or valuation FASGE 144,095,000 52,053,635 15,496,208 996,963 96,492,664 24,790,376 4,916,988 56,245,942 395,087,776
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HER
and impairment loss BEFE - (23,205,059) (4,797,078) (306,354)  (69,580,891)  (22,414,454) (4,264,095)  (56,245,942)  (180,813,873)
Net carrying amount FESE 144,095,000 28,848,576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2,375,922 652,803 - 214,273,903

Analysis of cost or valuation KA EEAT
at 31 December 2019: RZF-NE

TZR=t-R:
At cost A - 52053635  15496,208 996,963 96,492,664 24790376 4916988 56245942 250992776
At valuation 4 144,095,000 - - - - - - - 144,095,000

144,095,000 52,053,635 15,496,208 996,963 96492664 24,790,376 4916988 56245942 395,087,776
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. ¥ -  BERRE®)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery ~ equipment vehicles Moulds Total
il RER
THREF HERE HEREE  BAZRE e EA &t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK§
BT BT BT BT BT iy iy
31 December 2018 —2-N\5t-A=t-H
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+-f
1 January 2018: ST-BRZE-N\E
-B-R:
Cost or valuation KA EE 138,893,000 55,702,363  129,728905 33,891,017 5491874 60,527,234 424,234,393
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE - (28410,406)  (85,665757)  (30477.957)  (4554,598)  (60,527,234) (209,635,952)
Net carrying amount REFE 138,893,000 27,291,957 44,063,148 3,413,060 937,276 - 21459844
Reconciliation of carrying HE 3 )\&
amount - year ended TZAZT-RLEER
31 December 2018 BEAERS
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-A-H 138,893,000 27,291,957 44,063,148 3,413,060 937,276 - 214,598 441
Additions AE - 978,007 2,093,995 215,771 324,300 - 3,612,073
Disposals e - - (48,705) (2,229 - - (50,934)
Written-off Wi - - (2,074) - - - (2,074)
Depreciation i (4,810,297) (1,558,565  (7,525,838) (734,574) (450,162) - (15,079,436)
Provision for impairment HERE - - (1,841,415 (14,531) - - (1,855,946)
Surplus on revaluation credited BBt AL H2EHRA
to other comprehensive income 16,645,788 - - - - - 16,645,788
Exchange realignment S (2,734491) (1,354,795 (2,027,911) (138,338) (39,371) - (6,294,906)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA
S 147,994,000 25,356,604 34,711,200 2,739,159 712,043 - 211,573,006
At 31 December 2018: RZE-ETZA
Sk
Cost or valuation AR GE 147,994,000  47,440871 120,125,141 24,812,995 4955105  56,245942 401,574,054
Accumulated depreciation LHTERRERE
and impairment loss - (22,084267) (85413,941)  (22,073836)  (4,183,062)  (56,245,942) (190,001,048)
Net carrying amount REFE 147,994,000 25,356,604 34,711,200 2,739,159 712,043 - 211,573,006
Analysis of cost or valuation at  FXAZEEAT
31 December 2018: RZB-N\E
tZA=t-R:
At cost A - 47440871 120,125,141 24,812,995 4955105  56,245942 253,580,054
At valuation e 147,994,000 - - - - - 147,994,000
147,994,000  47,440871 120,125,141 24,812,995 4955105  56,245942 401,574,054
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end of the
reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer. The land and buildings in
Hong Kong were revalued on the basis of market value by
the comparison approach, based on their existing state,
while the buildings in Mainland China were revalued using
the depreciated replacement cost method. No changes were
made in the valuation technique(s) during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018. A surplus arising from revaluation
on the buildings in Mainland China of HK$3,255,095 (2018:
HK$5,455,788) and deficit of land and buildings in Hong Kong
of HK$824,570 (2018: surplus of HK$11,190,000) have been
credited/debited to other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, their carrying amounts would have been included
in the consolidated financial statements at approximately
HK$61,440,000 (2018: HK$64,263,000).

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

14. Y% - MEREZHE &)

REE 2 Tty MAEFRIRES BRA B
BELERGEMGSTETHE - &
B REFREEAROTEEER
R RIARRELS - 11 B ARERIE TR
BEMESERAZEG - HE-_ZT—N
ER-_E-—N\E+-_A=+—HILFE
A - BREGES AL EERTIEE -
B |t i B K P A B T E £ E
h B #43,255,0958 0 ( =& — A\ F :
5,455,788 70 ) R BB it RIEF(HE
i EE A4 /) 2 {7 5 18824,5708 o ( =&
— )\ : E$£11,190,000% 7T ) 25T A
SN EAAZERA o

AN 5= [ £ 3 F AE 5 AR S B AR R 51T
EREEBSIE - EEREEDF AL
G0 BEmEP - H$5461,440,000
BIL(—Z—/\4F : 64,263,00057T) °

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets HABEEREREFEREEER
by class of underlying assets is as follows: HFEEDHWOT :
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NF —T-NF
+=A=+—H —H—H
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt = BT I
Leasehold land and buildings EEAREAMEE LT
held for own use, carried at REF mAEH :
valuation, with remaining lease
term of:

— 50 years or more — 5048 F (i) 72,450,000 76,300,000
Land lease premium TiHHEEER (i) 10,699,130 11,133,305
Office premises NN (iii) 690,609 996,963
Motor vehicle SSE (iv) 182,419 263,494
Plant and machinery B K i 2s (iv) 3,113,590 3,535,042
Net carrying amount BREHE 87,135,748 92,228,804

AREE RN ERGHIE 2 ERHE

No addition of the right-of-use assets was recognised
during the year.
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% BMERKEE)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) FHRREEEE)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases EERERERNHEENR A
recongised in profit or loss is as follows: BT ¢
2019 2018 (Note)
“E-NFE ZT-NE(E)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by IRiBE A EERILHE REEENTE
class of underlying asset: EH:
Leasehold land and buildings HELHRET 3,025,431 2,590,000
Land lease premium THHEER 288,899 297,941
Office premises WAR 306,727 -
Motor vehicles e 81,075 60,806
Plant and machinery B R ihs 365,853 350,136
4,067,985 3,298,883
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified MizE: AKBEFALETERIRE
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 RERBEBMBHRELERE16
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases S WAER-ZE—hF—A—
which were previously classified as operating leases under BZzH&ERAEREGBEE
HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease ZIEFRREEE  mAaBMEELR
assets which were previously included in property, plant and BEBRBGTERZ17RDE
equipment is also identified as right-of-use assets. After initial RICEHE - ZRIARRBYE
recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group BERZENHEEEEED
as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right- MECDeHERERCAES
of-use assets, instead of recognising rental expenses incurred E-RZZE—NF—A—BUF
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease HREREEER ~EEBER
term. Under this approach, the comparative information is not ABAABRREAEEENT
restated. E THEHARERILER

74 M e TR T A TR S B
T o BIBUL A LREBATT
EIE
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

Leasehold land and buildings held for own
use

The Group holds a commercial building for its daily
operations. The Group is the registered owner of
the property interest, including the whole or part
of undivided share in the underlying land. Payments
were made upfront to acquire this property interest
from previous registered owners and there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms
of the land lease, other than payments based on
rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to
time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities.

Land lease premium

The land lease premium represents the interests in
leasehold lands held which are situated in Mainland
China and are held under medium term leases of 50
years.

(iii) Office premises

The Group has obtained the right to use a property
as its office premises through a tenancy agreement.
The lease term is 3 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless
approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use
asset can only be used by the Group and the Group
is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying
assets.

SREPBHRERMFE
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

14. Y% - BERERE @)
(a) ERBEEEE)

HE

BEZHRITHBENE

BB MRMFE25

(i)

(i)

HEFERANEEL R
#F

AEERE —EARXRTE
BREEZH - X&BSY
Fm(BE2 BN TaE
DEFPHED L) ER
AN - MZAEAABA
ERAMERRCFIADRKEX
- B BB R 12 = e
HEFTENRIEIN - WEE
MRBEHECRTEREX
NHEHE - BFEBFEEIR
EMAEEFENRAGREE
HTir ] ﬁﬁﬂﬁg °

THHEEEHR

THHEEERELRTEAX
EHEN T gD MEE
AR TEF -

(i) PR ZE

AEEFBREARES—
EWLERAZZH - HR
EHR=1 -

IR 1 R 249

REHHEHERE —BAR
B BRIFES LA ALLE
GRIEEAEHEEER AR
AREEER - WEIEAREE
HENEHEREE -
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - MERZHE &)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) EREEEE)
(iii) Office premises (continued) (iii) BAE (&)
Restrictions or covenants (continued) R %1 Je 24 (4 )
For leases of properties, the Group is required to RMAETYWEEEMmMS - K
keep those properties in a good state of repair and EBEEBRAEMEREE
return the properties in their original condition at the RiFm&EEHRR  YWREE
end of the lease. EREBRAEMEREH
Residual value guarantees FR1EFER
The Group does not provide residual value AEBIWEANHAEYHEM
guarantees for the lease contract of office premises. EREHREER -
(iv) Motor vehicle and plant and machinery (iv) TERBER#HES
The Group leases a motor vehicle and plant and AEBHE—WIBERET
machinery under leases expiring from 1 to 2 years. M- MEEHA—ZE=
None of the leases includes variable lease payments. F o i pyFE &I ] B A

HEHA -

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. B LB ER

2018

—E-N\F

HK$

BIT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHMEEAE 11,879,731
Amortisation during the year R E (297,941)
Exchange realignment EH T (448,485)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—HBrEmEE 11,133,305

Current portion included in prepayments, deposits 5+ ATERTZIE « 128 &

and other receivables H At R IB R R BN ED 10 (288,899)
Non-current portion JERENEL D 10,844,406
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the amount was presented MNEME BTG ERE1655%E - Ik
within “property, plant and equipment” in note 14 to the EE2ENEEHBHRERNT142D

consolidated financial statements. ¥ BEREENA -
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16. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HEZ

16. B AR

Z-NF+ZA=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

TEMBRARFEWT :

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and interest attributable to
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share the Company Principal activities
B/ R
AEAR EEY BERTRBZRHA ARAFERAEEEAL FEEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
S¥-AE ST\ Z¥-hE C3NF
Cokeen Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of management
Limited 5 10,0008 7T 10,0007 7T and administrative
HRERERDA services
REEE RITBRS
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
EE 2B 28T REER
Hideki Electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100  Sale of consumer
EREFEBAF &% 2,000,000  2,000,000%7T electronic products
HEETHEM
Hi-Tech (China) Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited &7 2,000,000 2,000,000 7T REER
hRE(RE)REBRAA
Hi-Tech Investment British Virgin Islands US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited EBRMRES 50,0005 7 50,000 7T REER
Hi-Tech Property British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 US$1 100 100 Property holding
Holdings Limited Mainland China 1557 (E WERHE
KBgEMRES/
YN
Hi-Tech Precision Hong Kong HK$1,500,000 HK$1,500,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts
Industrial Limited &% 1,500,000 1,500,000/ and components
HEREIXERAR HERTZEM
Hunpex Limited Hong Kong ~ HK$4,650,000 HK$4,650,000 100 100 Investment holding
BHEBRAA ZF 4,650,000 4,650,000/ RA IR
K & P Group British Virgin Islands/ US$1,238,545 US$1,238,545 100 100 Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited Hong Kong  1,238,545%7%  1,238545%7T REER
HRERRES/
K. S. (China) Electronics Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Manufactory Limited £ 2B 2B REER

R (HE)EFHARAH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. i 2 7 (4)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and interest attributable to
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share the Company Principal activities
R/ R
AEER EELE BERTRBZRHA ERRERAEEE AL FEEHB
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-RE —Z-)0\F ZB-hFE —T)\F
Mars Field Limited British Virgin Islands/ uss$1 US$1 100 100 Investment holding
S5 - VNG| Hong Kong 125 (E REER
KBgRRES/
BE
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Hong Kong  HK$10,890,000  HK$10,890,000 100 100 Sale of plastic parts
Factory Limited A% 10,890,0005 T  10,890,000/87C and components
MEBRTBERD A HEBBT MY
Technology Trends British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts
International Limited Singapore 50,000% 7T 50,0000 and components
KBgEMRES/ HERET MY
Gk
hRE(RL)EFEBRAR Mainland China ~ US$$10,000,000  US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REAE 10,000,000  10,000,000%7T of precision parts and
components
SERHERTTHMN
R EFERAR Mainland China ~ US$3,000,000  US$3,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REAE  3,000,000%7%  3,000,000%7T of precision parts
and components
SERHERTTHMN
FRENBCRYN AR AR Mainland China  HK$22,125,390  HK$22,125,390 100 100 Manufacture and sale
LlEN (note i) 22,125,390/ 7T of plastic parts
22,125,390/ 1T and components
(Bt i) SUERHEL BT

Note: sk -

(i)  On 22 September 2016, the registered share capital increased from i) RZZE—R"FLA=-+=-8 FMEXH
HK$8,000,000 to HK$23,000,000. The remaining registered share 8,000,0007% 7T 14 /i 223,000,000 7T © 2%
capital of HK$874,610 is committed by the Group to inject on or EEFEFER T "FNA=+—HBZZ
before 21 September 2026. Al EAN R & A8874,6 1078 7T ©

(i)  The Company’s indirectly owned subsidiary, ¥7Z%% %= FCEIDERA (i) ARREEERZMBARFEREF
7] was deregistered on 4 May 2019. CRIDBRARIER=Z—NFRAMH

Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above K & P Group (Holdings) Limiteds} +

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. MPAEMNE A RS BARAIEERE o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, E%ﬁ% : tiﬁﬁ?lJEZ$QﬁM¢EfA

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results AIEZREAFRGNEAAEEE

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets E%TEIEEB@ e i%ﬂ/ﬁgﬁ ; ?%Tf:(ﬁ

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in {‘@Mﬂ‘%’&ﬁjﬁ’\]ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ - @5 HNA B

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive RITEK o

length.
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVPL

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

17. RFVPLZ SR EE

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT P IT
Non-current asset FREEE
Club membership g 680,000 680,000
Current asset RBEE
Forward currency contracts REIEEER 1,845,132 -

Club membership
At 31 December 2019, the unlisted investment represented

club membership issued by a private entity. It is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The fair value
of the club membership is determined with reference to the
publicly available price information.

Forward currency contracts, at fair values

The Group entered into twelve forward currency contracts at
a total of US$31,621,958 for the exchange of United States
Dollars (“US$") with Renminbi (“RMB”) with the forward rates
ranged from RMB6.870 to RMB7.175 per US$1. The maturity
dates of these forward currency contracts are during the
period from 23 January 2020 to 17 December 2020.

During the year, the Group has realised loss of HK$6,397,436
arising from nine forward currency contracts of a total of
US$25,913,350 for the exchange of US$ with RMB which was
depreciated.

As at 31 December 2019, the forward currency contracts did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The change in the
fair value of these non-hedging currency derivatives amounting
to a gain of HK$1,845,132 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

=

RZE—NF+-A=+—H8 ¥Etm
KREELSERELCEMEE - NE
R ERRFEEAFEEBE - LEHAE
BIZANFEEDZEAAZKEER -

BRAFEBERAEESE
AEEZTT—hET(ETDEAR
B[ AR ¥ |)#{831,621,9585% JL K
RHEBAR RPERGEHTIE
ﬁﬁ6870/\§*§¥ ZE7175AREE o 2%

RAEBARZESHASEHR===
Tﬁ A-+=BZ=Z2=-Z2F+=A
++H-

AERN - AEBBNAGETHEARES
825,913,350 LW iR Bl § ¥ & [F
EARKHETEsS MRS 2B RERE
6,397,436/8 7T ©

RIB-NF+-_A=+—H0 ZZFE
HEESRL A EPEFHENE

o ZEIEFEB AT ENAF
BEZZFWEA1,845,1328 T E
REBE-_T—NF+-_A=1+—8
IEZFBERA(ZE—/\ : &) o

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinued)

HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

18. INVENTORIES 18. F&

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials [t 14,997,161 24,504,697
Work in progress TR 14,405,859 14,401,355
Finished goods 2URK T 25,870,112 31,079,573
55,273,132 69,985,625

Less: provision for slow-moving o R SR
inventories (1,652,227) (5,865,067)

As at 31 December 2019, there were no inventories carried at
fair value less cost to sell.

Provision of HK$465,776 (2018: HK$1,632,983) was made to
write down the inventories to net realisable value during the
year. Provisions made in previous years against the carrying
value of inventories of HK$4,678,616 (2018: HK$2,230,781)
have been written off against the inventories due to cessation
of operation of a subsidiary (2018: closure of a factory) in
consumer electronic products segment.

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19.

53,620,905 64,120,558

RZZE-NF+-_A=+—0 LEE
MEERAFEBEBRBEERAAR -

REER  FEMRERZRFED
i 5 5465,776%8 T( =& — J\ F :
1,632,98387C) - AEFHERDET
Z—HBARKRIEER(ZS—N\F:
BEME) FFEREHBZFEREREAE
4,678,616/8 TLE RTFERHMISH(—ZF —
J\4E : 2,230,781787T) °

ANRE - BREREMEKRK
"

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ET-N\F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Prepayments TBTFRIE 1,454,339 2,485,607
Toolings and mould deposits HERS 89,832 262,602
Deposits and other receivables e kEMERFIE 4,556,054 4,469,646
6,100,225 7,217,855
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. BRERTEA R R

2019 2018
—E-NEF —F-N\E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FEURBRIH 74,244,453 88,044,497
Less: loss allowance B EEEE (1,077,389) (822,410)
73,167,064 87,222,087

Bills receivable discounted with recourse )R (O] By e US B IE =4
(note 24) (FF5E24) = 145,175
73,167,064 87,367,262

In 2018, the Group discounted bills receivable to a bank in
exchange for cash with recourse in the ordinary course of
business. The Group continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of bills receivable and has recognised the cash
received as secured bank borrowings and included in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of discounted bills receivable was
HK$145,175. The carrying amount of the associated liability
was HK$145,175.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for trade and other receivables is included in note
35(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

RZZT—N\F @ AEERHEEBBRE
FRAGIR AT AR Bl M IR IR T —ER1TIAR
BIES c AEEEEEIAERZE 2
HEEELREERABSHME AR KR
BITEERBEESE B RERME
2 RZE—NF+=-_A=+—8"
ERERE 2 28 EEEA145,175%8
UL ZAHE B EZREEA145,175%

JC °

75 B8 7 5 8] XL P LA R TR e L A B W R IR
FIEEMEERREERBEEZENE
SHESA MEEWRMEES(C)

P& IR FE R TR 1% 3% 3% B B MO RR
EBEERBBRZERRIITMT -

2019 2018

—E-hF  —EF)N\F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 90 days h+EA 67,071,358 79,545,191
91 to 180 days A+—ZF2—8BNA+X 5,921,791 6,813,196
Over 180 days —BN+TXKNKE 173,915 863,700
73,167,064 87,222,087

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. SRITEBRES

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT PSIT
(re-presented)
(&31)
Time deposits with original maturity over  #&3i8=1& A R E 2|83 EifE =
three months
— Continuing operations —RHEREETK 23,340,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRSFEEE
— Continuing operations — R R T 27,861,009 41,253,171
— Discontinued operation — BRI EET 304,385 2,509,224
As stated in the consolidated statement of Z3|WGEEERESRER
cash flows 28,165,394 43,762,395
51,505,394 43,762,395
Bank balances and cash attributable to: IRITHEBRRIR S FThL :
— Continuing operations — R R T 51,201,009 41,253,171
— Discontinued operation — BRI EET 304,385 2,509,224
51,505,394 43,762,395

At the end of the reporting period, included in the balance of
the Group are bank balances and cash deposited in Mainland
China and denominated in RMB of HK$7,009,055 (2018:
HK$27,265,108). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China‘s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. Time deposits as at 31 December
2019 represented bank deposits placed in banks in Hong
Kong. The interest rate ranged from 2.19% to 2.33% per
annum in 2019.

REMEHR - AEBEFBHKEZ
HBREEUAARBAEZRITESRR
I & /7,009,0558 n( = F — A& :
27,265,108%7T) - ARETBEB R
B M & MEAR IR P B K RE SN E
ERERET HERITHNERER
T AREEES BERELE N
52 RITIE AR H AN o

RITRESTREEEMOBT EENL
SRR IT - R NEFE+-_A=1+—
AR EHERATEREBRITHRITE
o MRZE-NFHEFREEHEMH
2.19%%2.33% °
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SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. FE{IERIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RS BRENRIBEIREZ B A 2 iR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DATEAT ¢
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT PBTT
Within 90 days ht+EA 35,894,120 42,446,950
91 to 180 days NT+—Z—8NA+XK 333,783 2,473,819
Over 180 days —BNATRAE 26,438 3,183

36,254,341 44,923,952

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and JENEEIE AEIEH pE R —RNBE
are normally settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days of AfZAtE—B_+XEE -
invoice date.
23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ErtEERHMEMAIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Contract liabilities (note 23(a)) a#aE(HE23() 4,597,572 9,388,683
Other accrued liabilities HibETaE 32,584 155,937
Other payables H A A5 R0 6,313,600 3,560,565
Mainland China staff compensation FEIAEE THES 303,008 12,286,443
Staff cost payables FERE THY 22,565,349 21,312,593

33,812,113 46,704,221

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average Hit R HIBERREREERATH=
credit period of three months. &R o

BRHEERZERERAR 131
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EstEEREMENSRE #)
(continued)
(a) Contract liabilities (a) EHEE

The amount includes toolings and mould deposits received
and sales deposits received.

The movements of toolings and mould deposits received
and sales deposits received from contracts with customers
within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows:

ZeREREWRRAREREK
HEZS -

AEEARBEMBHRE LS
152 REBFPAHNNERER
BEMEWEHERS BB :

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

At 1 January R—H—H

Recognised as revenue ERABWA

Recognised as other income R EEMIA

Receipt of advances or recognition of U T8~ X IE sk HE 7R E Uk 7k 1E
receivables

At 31 December R+t=HA=+—H

At 31 December 2019, the contract liabilities that are
expected to be settled within the next twelve months are
HK$3,972,916 (2018: HK$8,871,560) and the contract
liabilities that are expected to be settled after more than
12 months are HK$624,656 (2018: HK$517,123). The
customer paid for the goods or services in advance and
the timing of the transfer of those goods or services is at
the discretion of the customer.

9,388,683 12,045,272
(23,368,271) (41,388,345)
- (589,268)

18,577,160 39,321,024

4,597,572 9,388,683

R=ZT—NAF+=A=+—80"
AHBEES972,9168 (==
— )\ 4 : 8,871,560/ 7t ) A A A
2R tT-EARBZE 6HNERE
18624,656/5 ;L( = & — J\ & :
517,123 ) RN BHAZ 1%+
ZEAKE - BATEXEWHR
EHIE - WAHRRE &SRS
sEEEHE o

132

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019



SREPBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

2019

Effective interest
rate (%) per

24. FEERTREMEE

e

annum  Maturity HK$
BRFAR%) FHH BT
Revolving term loans — unsecured 4.32 - 5.33  Fully repayable from 29/3/2020 to 23/4/2020 7,000,000
BERAMER —EHF M-B-BF=A-tNEZE
“ECEFNACT=HZEBEE
Trust receipt loans 3.96 - 4.26  Fully repayable from 17/1/2020 to 20/4/2020 5,040,876
ERREER M-Z-2F-A+tHE
“ECEFNA-THREEE
12,040,876
2018 —B)N\F
Effective interest
rate (%) per
annum  Maturity HK$
BERFHR(%) ZIHA BT
Current:
ik )
Finance lease payables (note 25) 1.60 - 3.25  Fully repayable from 10/7/2019 to 29/4/2022 2,066,627
FERT R E & (FIFE25) BT NFLtATHZE
oAt hBREEE
Bank loans - discounted bills with 5.00  Due for payment on 27/1/2019 145,175
recourse (note 20) RZZ2—NF— A=+t BEHHFR
RITER—ARENRRER
(Ff3E20)
Revolving term loans — unsecured 4.10 - 5.43  Fully repayable from 11/1/2019 to 23/5/2019 22,000,000
ERAHER - EEF H_Z-NAF—HA+—HZE
—T-NERA-t=HZ2EEE
Trust receipt loans 3.87 -5.10  Fully repayable from 29/1/2019 to 23/4/2019 9,893,426
ERKEER R-E-NF-A-+NABE
“Z-NFENAZT=H2EER
34,105,228
Non-current:
eyt
Finance lease payables (note 25) 1.60 - 3.25  Fully repayable from 26/10/2020 to 29/4/2022 1,704,471
ERREMEE (P5E25) M_Z_TFTA-TREE
—E-__FNA-tNBZEEE
35,809,699

2HE

BERARAR
—g-AEER
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. TRBITRHEMEBE (2)
BORROWINGS (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate ANEBEEZEmMEHRE AL EEME
their fair values. = oo
As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank facilities were N_ZE—hhE+-_A=+—H ' ~&H
secured by a corporate guarantee executed by the Company. VEBSRITEREE 2K ANARIZN
L ABFEELR o
25. LEASE LIABILITIES/FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25 EAE EIREHRE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities RARFREFRERREERNERES
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current and B mEERF165REH  AEEIR
previous reporting periods and at the date of transition to FlerE M HNEEBENT
HKFRS 16:
31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (Note) 31 December 2018
—Z-NF —E-hEF —Z-N\F
+=A=t+—H —A—A ) +-A=+t—8
Present
Present Present Total value of
Total value value  minimum  minimum
lease  of lease Total lease of lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
=
HERE MHEFxE MHExE HEFRE HIHE HERHE
@it WMESHE B/ WMESE RELH HNRSE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Current: ok
Within one year RN—FR 1,543,074 1,460,865 2,513,393 2,367,605 2,196,788 2,066,627
Non-current: FERE
After one year but within —F1& BRI F A
two years 839,187 815,067 1,543,074 1,460,865 1,240,992 1,180,612
After two year but within FRREZBRAFA
five years 125,723 124,524 964,910 939,591 537,106 523,859
964,910 939,591 2,507,984 2,400,456 1,778,098 1,704,471
2,507,984 2,400,456 5,021,377 4,768,061 3,974,886 3,771,098
Less: total future B BB
interest expenses @t (107,528) (253,316) (203,788)
Present value of HEBENRSE
lease liabilities 2,400,456 4,768,061 3,771,098
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

25. LEASE LIABILITIES/FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25. HESE EBIRERE &)

(continued)

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment held under leases/finance
leases, and was therefore pledged, was HK$3,296,009 (2018:
HK$7,941,992).

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balance at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities at the DIA is 3.6%. These liabilities have been aggregated
with the brought forward balances relating to leases previously
classified as finance leases with effective interest rate ranged from 1.6%
to 3.25% per annum. Comparative information as at 31 December
2018 has not been restated and relates solely to leases previously
classified as finance leases. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

—NFE+ZA=1+—H ~&E

EHE BMEBETHEZNE  BE

HfE T EHEE ZBRMAE 453,296,009

BIL(ZZE—\F 1 7,941,992/87L) °

i

AEBFEARKEITEBPAREBRERE
ISR EREAFE 1657 WHBR=-F—
NE—A—BZHNEHUERERA
hZﬁﬁﬁﬁéé‘F MmEBAELNRIES

SHEREI 7R EAKETRE -RE
MEJHHE%ﬁgﬁﬁf:&%%%ﬁ’muﬁg?ﬁ
EERAFEE36% LB EAEZBIIR
H1.6%E3.25%ERFHEREHEAR
BRERAREHROBRHE - R=2F—\F+
A=+t BHBREREHEEY RIAM
REABEMENTRE -BEESUER
SRR FHTED BERRE
ISR MIEE2.2

IR BN F AR A TR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\EF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Lease payments: MEFRIE
Short-term leases h,ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%‘: 1,038,912 -
Low-value assets fﬂﬁiﬂﬁmﬁ% 31,033 =
Operating lease payments LETHER - 5,182,011
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RE R R A X B 1,069,945 5,182,011
Lease payments: HEFIE :
Interest on lease liabilities/finance leases HEAE MERENS
(Note 6) (FfF5E6) 153,309 307,924
Under leases/finance leases RHEE,/ BEHEET 2,368,019 5,799,361
2,521,328 6,107,285
Total cash outflow for leases HEz@eBe Rt 3,591,273 11,289,296

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

25. LEASE LIABILITIES/FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

(continued)
Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2018

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which are payable as follows:

HEAE

25. HERE EABMEHESE @)

R-ZE—-\F+_HA=+—H

AEEBRBETEBUEREHEE 2 BiR&
PREMNEEABEENTIHEEE

HK$

BT

Within one year R—FR 918,934
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_EFRAF(BREEERT) =
918,934

26. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

2019

26. IELEBIE

™

EEBEER
—2-hE

Depreciation

AEERNZBRERARBREEZSHN

allowance
in excess
of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
BHERTEZ
MERBiE YIS R st
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H 872,032 21,146,646 22,018,678
Deferred tax debited to other REEREMEEIRA
comprehensive income during HIBR 2 EFEFL A
the year - 677,720 677,720
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 R=ZZF—F+_HA
December 2019 = +—RHZRERE
BERE 872,032 21,824,366 22,696,398
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. EEBIIE &)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EEFIEEGE(E)
2018 —E—)\F

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
HHARETE 2
TERNE e HEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—HA—H 872,032 16,890,079 17,762,111
Deferred tax debited to other REFREMEERA
comprehensive income during kR 2 RET IR
the year - 4,256,567 4,256,567
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 R=ZF— /\F+—A
December 2018 =+ —HZIEERIA
BEER 872,032 21,146,646 22,018,678
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the HRARBEREEHRIBEEZBENT ¢
following items:
2019 2018
=E-NF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT PBIT
Deductible temporary differences TRz EREER 4,091,616 46,901,503
Tax losses BiIE B 18 43,385,519 32,353,348
At end of the reporting period R HIR 47,477,135 79,254,851
Pursuant to Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a WIER B ARREMSZEMERHE  RPEX
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign BERK T VSN IR B R E RN IR E E
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in R B BIR10% R TENFL o th R
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January FEH-_ZEZEN\F— A —HELERN W@
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A AR -—ZEE+HF+-_A=+—HENEA
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax F o ik F B K e ER AN 2 8 35 B Al AR
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the @RI ARG - BIA EASENTERN
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding BME - Qit - X"EEFEERRNTHEA
taxes on dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries FER M ZEHNB A RN T\ F—
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated A—HRESNETTD IR E &
from 1 January 2008 onwards. TEHFL o
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. EEBIIE(E)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 December 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised
for such withholding taxes that would be payable on the
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes at
distribution. In the opinion of the directors, these accumulated
profits, at the present time, are required for financing the
continuing operations of the entities and no distribution would
be made in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of retained earnings associated with these subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$6,549,000 at 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$19,693,000).

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses that can be offset against future taxable profits of
the respective subsidiaries. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised because it is not expected that future taxable
profits will be available against which the Group can utilise
the benefits therefrom. The expiry dates for unrecognised tax
losses are as follows:

EEBHAEE(E)

R-ZE—NE+-A=1+—0 ~&£H
b 8 A R B R BE K ST 2 P B R RS
DIRREB BRI EE Z EATBIFER
FEFRIE - EZRARBEAALZER
EMATFIHARBELE W&
FERRKEMEDIK - R=ZT—NEF+
ZA=+—R8  UEERAEPBEAE
M A RIRE BA g 2 ELHIBAE
45T #96,549,00078 o =& — J\F ¢
19,693,000/ 7T ) ©

R-ZE—hE+-_F=+—H  ~A&EH
B AR ZEWB A RS
FIH R ERRIBEE - ARAEE KA
TERT A7 B2 B HM ERTURF] -
Bl L N SR h I FERR R R B B EE © AR
REEBENEMENT

2019 2018

—E-hE —T)N\F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Tax losses without expiration B fE 2 T IR B 1R 32,937,631 32,353,348
Tax losses expiring in: VAR & 2 B IR 1A -

2020 —E-TF - =

2021 — T —F = —

2022 —E-_4F - -

2023 =4 - -

2024 —T e 10,447,888 -

At the end of the reporting period RIRE B 43,385,519 32,353,348

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AR BRNA S T E R ARE TS
BREE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2019 2018
—E-NEF —F-N\E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares [igvil
Authorised: JETE ¢
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,000 =X E &
0.10/8 7T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE :
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each 267,004,800/ &M EE
0.1087T 26,700,480 26,700,480
28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. IR fEHE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) with effect from 23 May 2012. A summary of the
Scheme is as follows:

Purposes

Participants

To provide incentives and rewards to
eligible participants for their contributions
to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”).

(i)

(ii)

any employee (whether full-time or
part-time), executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any customer of
the Group or any Invested Entity;
any person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity; and

RAR AN =—ZE——FRA=-+=
B ARz BEBRRERTEI(T5HE]) - T8I
I

REBARESERSE
ATHAEEEL 2B/
SN e

HeEREERRAHEAKR
SERTAAKEERBR
E A 2 2@ ([ Fr
RERQRDBEKREEZ
AHER -

EN:y)

2BEAL () ARF - BEMHE
NEIREAEFARE
RAEIZEEE (T
EEBEGRE) - BT
B FHTEER
B IFITES

(i) RAEBEEEMKXER
BIREMAIRE AT
RHEEMmEIRBE 2 E
It ER - AKE
EFRMRE AR ZE
AEPF : MAKEN
TR E R R
R FESEMER
M & 2 EA AL
NGRS
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

28. SHARE OPTION

Participants
(continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for
issue and the
percentage of
the issued share
capital that it
represents as
at the date of
the annual report

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within
which the
securities
must be taken
up under an
option

Minimum period
for which an
option must be
held before it
can be exercised

Amount payable
on acceptance

Period within
which payments/
calls/loans must
be made/repaid

SCHEME (continued)

(iii) any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

26,700,480 ordinary shares and 10% of
the issued share capital.

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company in any 12-month
period.

An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors to each grantee,
but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

There is no minimum period for which an
option granted must be held before it can
be exercised.

The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 28 days from the
date of the offer with a consideration of
HK$1.00 being payable by the grantee.

Not applicable.

28. BIRERT ()

2EAL
(&)

AT ETA
ERiliEs]
BIARE
KA 5
BEMAEE
BITRR
MBS

BERBEA
TR
s LR

RIZME
RIBE S
H HARR

BRI T
ZHIUAZR
SEEN:0R-
AR

ANEESY

T

kBN
BEEAE
EHRBE
RHIHAR

REBEAKE AT
KALAFRERFZ
ERBREAREE
A X B R B AR AT
BRERBIFTEITEM
BHZEFMFAA o

(iif)

26,700,4800% & 38 A% M
BEITIRAZ10% °

EEM22EAR - TF
BEARARDETRAZ
1% °

BEABEAAIREFERER
& BAFE A (RIS PR 1T 468
BRE - EEEMERT
TREXNBRLERER
HIRE 105 (IR IR % 16K
e L RIBRSL) -

1T B A i 2 B I
WBRF AR HR

AR AR R B
ZZAR-—TNBA &
ENEERESE.008
TURIZ M2

A -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Basis of determining Determined by the directors but shall not
the exercise price be less than the highest of (i) the closing

29.

The remaining life
of the Scheme

price of the ordinary shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of the offer of options,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the
average closing price of the ordinary
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of options; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The Scheme remains in force until 22 May
2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
forfeited since the adoption of the Scheme and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
58 and 59 of the consolidated financial statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of
the net proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company’s shares over their par value.

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

28.

29.

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

B RERTEl )

THEENE REFTRE ALK

EEE BRTIFZESE:
(VB IR B AR
&2 H(BARRZA) 2
B (AR X P B ¥R R AT
FER/E)  (NEBER
REEREEE AR AE
R BZFHRTEA
BXPABRRAEER
) R(iVA R AR E
-

Bz
£

EERHE T ——
AAZ+=HIE-

BRESHAAL TN EEREREXRN
BRE LIRE 2 -

BSRALLETSIASR - W - 176
A HNIEEABRERN T - NFR
“E-N\F+ZA=+—8 - BERT
150 2 FE AR -

R
(a) &8

RERRARMFEE 2 AR ERE
REBEE 2INALGRE W BRE
F58REIB IR A EREERK

BinimEBRIERITARBRNE
KSZERAFEINEBEE
[ER=PA=v

B EERZEASXAERE N
IN—FRREFLOGKEE -

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER

141




e MR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

29. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Group (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result
of the Group’s reorganisation and represents the excess
of the nominal value of the share capital of the former
holding company of the Group, K & P Group (Holdings)
Limited, prior to the Group's reorganisation in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares in 1996, over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay
up the nil-paid shares issued on the incorporation of the
Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used to
record the increases in the fair value of land and buildings
and the decreases to the extent that such decrease relates
to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in
equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is used to
record exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

29. f&E(#)
(a) &E(#)

AEBEBZHABBFEEAEEE
M HEAEBER—ANANER
EHEAPTRG Lz BHAA
SEZAIER AT K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited 2 f&% 7S {E &
KRR BRBZERMDMEITIK
AEEZ HZ 2 ERE RN
NNV NN Doz o 1 9D VAl i S
TRBED 2 EFE -

AEBEzEEERHBRMAER
B REFRAFEEEM
HERDOERRNEREER
BER DT EEE M RER 2 E

Ny
S o

I

AEBEZERRBFERBITARC
e M NUOY = NG R B E ]
EEMELER -

Company (b) 2F]
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated Proposed
account surplus losses dividend Total
RIDRER N ] BEERE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 R=E—-\E—H—H 50,856,881 49,999,981  (22,516,078) - 78,340,784
Loss for the year and total REEHRRAEE
comprehensive loss for the year 2 EEELEE - - (10,292,589) - (10,292,589)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+-A=1+—-H 50,856,881 49,999,981  (32,808,667) - 68,048,195
Profit for the year and total RERRMNRAER
comprehensive income for the 2 EYTA L5
year - - 3,127,198 - 3,127,198
Interim dividend paid (note 12) B HRE (Fi3E12) - - (2,670,048) - (2,670,048)
Final dividend proposed (note 12) &z AKERE (HizE12) - - (5,340,096) 5,340,096 -
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-hE
+ZA=1+-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (37,691,613) 5,340,096 68,505,345
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying consolidated net assets
of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries at
the date on which the Group’s reorganisation became
effective, referred to in note 29(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore,
less the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares
issued on the incorporation of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus in certain circumstances. As at
31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$12,308,368 (2018:
HK$17,191,314).

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

29. &)
(b) 7] (#&)

KRN 2 BANBERTE K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited & EKIE A AR
CEBEHERBZEAEEFAE
REARAAFMETARRZA
BAEEZ @ B(FBHENGE
B F KM TE290)) - MEBMRE
TEAR A A B Z =M S B Fr
BITRBZRD 2 SFE -

BIEERE—NN\—FQ%
AABAERLEBERTRBEAR
BPBEREEXEBERESIK - B
—T—hhF+=ZA=+—H8" &
RERBEEREE—NLN\—FQF
ETHEE - AIEARRES IR
2 512,308,368 T ( —F —
J\EE £ 17,191,314 7T) ©

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

30. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities are as follows:

30.

METDELE2EEEH

AEERETHELE Y BETH S
m -

2019 —E—hE
Interest-  Bank loans-
bearing bank  discounted Finance
and other bills with lease Lease Dividend
borrowing recourse payables liabilities payable Total
RATER -
TERAR TREN e
AftfeE RZE BE HEER EftRE a3t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
oo o o BT BT BT
At beginning of the year REEEY 31,893,426 145175 3,771,098 - - 35,809,699
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 SV A/EI R4 &8
F163% - - (3,771,098 4,768,061 - 996,963
New unsecured bank loans/ MERERSOER/ BEE
revolving term loans/trust HER/EHRBER
receipt loans 28,909,166 - - - - 28,909,166
Decrease in discounted bills ERERIAD - (145,175) - - - (145,175)
Declaration of dividend ERRE - - - - 2,670,048 2,670,048
Dividend paid BRRE - - - - (2670,048)  (2,670,048)
Repayment of unsecured bank ~ EEEHARITER/BRE
loansfrevolving term loansitrust — EFE3 /(ERE B E R
receipt loans (48,761,716) - - - - (48,761,716)
Exchange realignment ERRE - - - 414 - 414
Repayment of lease liabilities ~ EEHEAR - - - (2368,019) - (2368,019)
At end of the year REEER 12,040,876 - - 2,400,456 - 14441332
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

30. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 30. REFEELECEEERE &)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)
2018 —ZE—N\F
Interest-
bearing Bank loans-
bank and  discounted Finance
other bills with lease
borrowing recourse payables Total
RITER—
HERITR AR B A JERTRLE
HibfgE AR IR HE RET
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
SIT BIT BIT BIT
At beginning of the year RAFEY] 29,476,308 377,602 9,270,949 39,124,859
New unsecured bank loans/ TS EERIRITE
revolving term loans/trust R EREHE
receipt loans FEFBUEER 95,319,646 = - 95,319,646
Decrease in discounted bills BRIR IR 2 R = (232,427) = (232,427)
Repayment of unsecured EEERRSHE
instalment loans/bank loans/ X $R{TER &
revolving term loans/trust RHEBER =5t
receipt loans WIEE R (92,902,528) - - (92,902,528)
New finance leases raised SR EAE - - 299,510 299,510
Capital element of finance lease BB E Kz EAR
payments B - - (5,799,361) (5,799,361)
At end of the year RARFER 31,893,426 145,175 3,771,098 35,809,699
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bank loan- HEMITREMEER  RITER AR
discounted bills with recourse and liabilities under leases are B R RLER R R EN R E A ERERE B
disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. TSR FE24 5258 -
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

31. COMMITMENTS 31. AL
Except for those disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated IR BT A TSR R A E A3t 5 4)
financial statements, at the end of the reporting period, the R4 B R - 7N &£ B I 8 F (o] & 2N &
Group did not have any other capital commitments. Zo
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEAERS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AREBTEEIEAB Z RN :
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits REEEREA 8,597,240 10,110,281
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes :E (k& F|5H2] 42k 36,000 36,000
Total compensation paid to key ST EBEIEAB 2 BRI
management personnel 8,633,240 10,146,281
The above compensation for key management personnel of N EREFBFTEEIEAE ZRNBIES
the Group includes emoluments paid to the directors. Further NFEEZME - EAEEMS 2554
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the BRI BIERERE I RERMIFES o

consolidated financial statements.
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. & TEMSE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIEHR @R T ASEMNMNREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as wm
follows:
2019 —E-NF
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised cost assets at FVPL Total
BREERAE 2 RFVPLZ
TREE SREE #at
HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets as per RBHAESMBERRTRZ

consolidated statement of E£@MEE :
financial position:

Financial assets at FVPL HFVPLZ & RE E
— Club membership — e - 680,000 680,000
- Forward currency contracts —®=HIE¥EE4 - 1,845,132 1,845,132
Financial assets included in BERBEMNTE BER
prepayments, deposits and HihElh B2 &5
other receivables (note 19) & EE(MsE19) 839,570 - 839,570
Trade and bills receivables EURBRTE K = 73,167,064 - 73,167,064
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 51,505,394 - 51,505,394
125,512,028 2,525,132 128,037,160
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
RS RR AR
ZemaE st
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated #R#E4r & MR E 2
statement of financial position: SRIEE
Trade payables FE ST BRTE 36,254,341 36,254,341
Financial liabilities included in accrued B&ERETEENHEMENRIEZ
liabilities and other payables (note 23) &gt & & (HzE23) 5,318,195 5,318,195
Interest-bearing bank and other ERIRTREMER
borrowings 12,040,876 12,040,876
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,400,456 2,400,456

56,013,868 56,013,868

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. eI EMSEE)
(continued)
2018 —E-N\F
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset
cost at FVPL Total
RESHR AR 2 1ZFVPLZ
ERLEE ERIEE 5T
HK$ HK$ HK$
ABIT BIT BT
Financial assets as per BEBSEAMBERRERZ
consolidated statement of SRIEE
financial position:
Financial asset at FVPL BFVPLZ &R B B - 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERTENTIE e &
prepayments, deposits and Hib X IBE 2 £ @t
other receivables (note 19) &= (M1EE19) 1,690,339 = 1,690,339
Trade and bills receivables FEURBRTE K =4 87,367,262 = 87,367,262
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIRS 43,762,395 - 43,762,395
132,819,996 680,000 133,499,996
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
REE SR A
= S= N #aEt
HK$ HK$
BT PSIT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated — RiB4R A BRI KR 2
statement of financial position: TREIEE
Trade payables JERTARIE 44,923,952 44,923,952
Financial liabilities included in accrued B EREFAEREMEMNFIEBEZ
liabilities and other payables (note 23) &gt & & (FfzF23) 3,084,823 3,084,823
Interest-bearing bank HERITREMEER
and other borrowings 35,809,699 35,809,699
83,818,474 83,818,474
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 34. A¥EEFE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured AT BEB TS RELELF135 : 2
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these FEEFEMREZ A TFEE=EZR
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis across B AT EEFAEZEERBESR
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS AIREE R EN RS SRR IR
13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement NEBE O BEEREZFESERME A
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that T EENRERETE8EATENG AR
is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs B ABBESRERNAT :

are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—R(ERER) AEEEFERA
markets for identical assets or EE BT I5 S A8
liabilities that the Group can access at FEEESEEZH
the measurement date; BORKEHHE):

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices =Sl EEXBBEAER
included within Level 1 that are BACEEE Rl TUN
observable for the asset or liability, g5 F—HBE
either directly or indirectly; ZERBRRIN

Level 3 (lowest level):  unobservable inputs for the asset or E=M(RESER) BEHEBZTA
liability. S AR o
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 34. AR EEFEE)

TERBRIEAFEEFENEERA
B WRAFEEFRDB DM

The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities
measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

2019
—E-NF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& BEZR E=R st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVPL: EFVPLZ SREE :
— Club membership = SfE s
— outside Hong Kong — BRI 680,000 - - 680,000
- Forward currency contracts —RHAEEAR - 1,845,132 - 1,845,132
Leasehold land and buildings: HERELHRETF
Commercial - Hong Kong [HE S5 - 72,450,000 - 72,450,000
Owned buildings: BERT:
Industrial — outside Hong Kong T -FEEIN - - 71,645,000 71,645,000
2018
—E-N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—H E—R F=& et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT PBIT BIT BT
Financial asset at FVPL: BFVPLZ SRIEE ¢
— Club membership —Sfas
— outside Hong Kong —BBIEIN 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and buildings: T RET
Commercial - Hong Kong EE—BB - 76,300,000 - 76,300,000
Industrial — outside Hong Kong T —FBIBIN - - 71,694,000 71,694,000

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements.

HE_T-—hhER-_ZT—N\F+-A=
+—HIEFERN 2 FEEAEE &
NE Mz B E I BEE=
BATFEEAEZ2EAREL -
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

34. RV EEE®E)

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements BERATFEETEZEF
2019 —E-NF
Land and
building:
Industrial
- outside
Hong Kong
T REF
T¥-—-FEEN
HK$
Description Ha st BT
At beginning of the reporting period AR HR ) 71,694,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss EBREHRZITE (2,320,334)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to other S AEBEKEEE A
comprehensive income Hu2mk A 3,255,095
Exchange realignment ME 3 FE X (983,761)
At the end of the reporting period AR HA R 71,645,000

Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period
included in profit or loss held at the end of the
reporting period

7R AR 1 RS IR A 8RS K
BAZ RERMGS R AR 2

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 34. A EEFE#E)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements FERMAVEEAEZEE (Z)
(continued)
2018 —E-N\F
Land and
building:
Industrial
— outside
Hong Kong
T RETF
TE-FEBEIN
HK$
Description g BIT
At beginning of the reporting period TAER A HA %) 71,193,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BBk E (2,220,297)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to other EEAFEERKETA
comprehensive income Hiz2mik A 5,455,788
Exchange realignment BEE 5 S X (2,734,491)
At the end of the reporting period R4 HE R 71,694,000
Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period NEAR B IEEEREEMRREER
included in profit or loss held at the end of the BAEZABR W EE 2 &
reporting period =
Description of the valuation techniques and inputs E_HNTEEISECZCHAEER
used in Level 2 fair value measurement i {E 75 3% 3t
a) Forward currency contracts a) EHEMA[E
The fair value of forward currency contracts is measured BRHERLSEZAEBESHE
by comparing the contracted forward rates and the EHERBITHNFEER - Al
quoted forward exchange rates for the remaining RyFZHAREZRERH TARE
contractual maturity, by the same bank, which are A=A RREELRMm:t
observable at the end of the reporting period. 2o
b) Properties located in Hong Kong b) REBEZYE
The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by MNRBBZMERBIIEEELE
Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professionally BIGENEETEREE TS E
qualified valuer, on the basis of market value by the EBENAREEHHE ' B8R
comparison approach, which is based on market TS ERMERL S R R Z Y E
observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted MR ZEBEEAERARNRIE
for differences in key valuation attributes, such as size and B MBE(EH =285 -

age to reflect the conditions of the subject properties.
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement

Properties located in Mainland China

The fair value of the properties located in Mainland China
was revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer, using depreciated replacement
cost approach. The valuer considered the subject properties
are specialised properties for which there is no readily market
observable transaction of similar properties. The estimation
of fair value of the subject properties took into account their
current cost of replacement or reproduction, less deduction for
physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation.

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level
3 fair value measurement, including the description of the
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs for recurring Level
3 fair value measurements, are as follows:

Fair value at 31 December

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

34. AR EEFEE)
BFER AT EEFEZBAEER
fHEGEH
{7 e B A [ 2 ) 2

NRPRBEAEZMERBLEXAER
HEMEETRABNEEERAEERN
e - [HERZ BRI YE BRI -
M LW EAIBRZBRNERS - &
EERIZMEZATHEBRZ2ERKNE
BEXRERZKA - REE R R EEE
RILANEEREL -

E=ZERNAFEEFEMAZEK
FABRGARBEZBLER KM
(=W S

F=BRAFEEAEMAZEATAE
R ABRBEELEHNRGET AR
i BEHEENE=RAFEENE

2 FABREAREED 2 GUREiin
T -

Sensitivity of fair value to
changes in unobservable

Description 2019 Valuation techniques Unobservable input inputs
R=Z-AF+=R TIRERARE
fiit = = A fhER & TIEERAYE AT EESRERS
Asset
Property, plant
and equipment
- Properties HK$71,645,000 Depreciated Estimated costs of Assuming other factors
included in (2018: HK$71,694,000) replacement construction (HK$148 per  remain unchanged, the
land and building: cost approach sq. ft.) (2018: HK$148 higher the estimated cost
Industrial outsie per sq. ft.) of similar type  of construction, the higher
Hong Kong of industrial premises the fair value, and vice
with adjustment on age, versa.
condition, utility, etc.
n¥ - BEREE 71,645,000 1T REEERAL BRIZMzEER R RIEBERIE - HHEE
-MEBREELHREF: (ZF—\F : 71,694,000%7T) RESHELMHEENA  FAER  ATEEES -
BEENTENE (14837 /FAR)(ZF—  RZH%-

J\E 148587/ FAR) °
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

34

35.

. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group has a team headed by directors reviewing
estimation of fair value of the properties. Fair values of the
properties are estimated by the independent professionally
qualified valuer on an annual basis. Discussions of the
valuation process and results with the directors and the Audit
Committee are held twice a year, for the Group’s interim and
annual reporting.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and short-term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial instruments such as trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables
and accrued liabilities and other payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term
debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s funding policy uses short-term interest-
bearing debts to finance its working capital requirements
and interest-bearing debts over one year or internal
generated resources to finance its capital investments.
The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates and
the use of fixed rate interest-bearing debts over one year
will only be considered for capital investments and under
favourable market conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

34.

35.

NP EEFEE)
KEEERF

AEENE 2 A HEEEHESEEW
PNMERE - REMRZ A TFEESFH
BY BE A ERMEERE - HERF
RERRBEMAAKENTHARFR
BEREZNBEREZE MW

MBEREEBERBER

AEBZIZERMIABRETERRITR
Hiptg g - ANRIRE REMER - ZF
EMTAZTIEANERAKEZES
KE® - ARENAZHERNZEE
EZHEMSRTE  fIIEKERERR
% FANFOR - Be REMRKER
ENEREMETREREREMFUA -

AEESRTES M 2R ATIE
R - SNERE - EERBRERBES
R -  EFESEMMAEEREEZS
R BRR - B

(a) F=mE

AEENMSMNEEFHERER
HEARBERAEHEZFDNEE

AEBENBESBRREAEHE R
ERRHEBEENBE RIA—
FULENHFEEERHAIERE
HESFEARE - AEEXE
BRI RERE - —FALN
EXHEERASERANOMS
R T T EBBIFEARRE -

PAT RAG RO H b B BAR K A
g MmAMEAEHRAEREZ
BT NEBERRH R ENOE
BEBNEEREE) ZHRED

#r
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

35. BIEAMEEEERBES)

(a) FEmEBEE)

2019 2018

“E-NF —TN\F
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ Increase in Increase/ Increase in
(Decrease) in profit (Decrease) in profit
basis points after tax basis points after tax
=Y BB R R EE BRBL &R
#Bm,/(R) (F)/ 18 /(i) (R &m
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10 (11,416) 10 (29,670)
Hong Kong dollar BT (10) 11,416 (10) 29,670

(b) Foreign currency risk

(b) MR

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise mainly from (i) the operating units in Hong
Kong which maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, their
functional currency, but make sales in United States dollar
(“USD"”) and purchases in RMB. (ii) the majority of the
transactions of the operating units in Mainland China are
denominated in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced
from Hong Kong operating units. (iii) the operating unit
in Singapore which maintain cash in Singapore dollar, its
functional currency, but make sales in USD.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to USD and that the Group tries to match its assets and
liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure to
USD foreign currency risk is minimal. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant and
excluding the effect of the forward currency contracts,
of the Group’s profit after tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

AEEERZESAR - ER
RENEEEELEREURALE
RBe HWAEEEE BHE
AET(TET))  MRBUAR
BAEFHE ()P B REEESE N
TEUNARBRS  BHEESE
EREBRBEEEN  RiNEE
AN & 8 AL R A FT MNP TIR
T WAEDREEE  BHEMN
ELiEAtE -

HRBTEITHB R AN EEE
AEENERERES EHBEE
KBE  NEBAENETI
ERREM - ATRBETINR
THREMBEHRFAERTE
RENEKARZTZE  mH
BEXRAELRGERKS ZBER
T AEERRESEN(RERE
ENBENATFEELRER)Z
BURE DT ©
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. iIAMEEEERBE#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (continued) (b) SMNEERBR (%)
Exposure to foreign currencies
MERR
2019 2018
“B-NE —EN\F
HKD RMB usb HKD RMB Ush
BT ARH E BT ARE e
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Finandial assets TREE 3 597,621 7,213,284 7 417,297 40,898,507
Financial liabilities tEEE (46,029,563) - (6,687,452) (46,016,749) (727.293)  (7,086,067)
Net exposure FER (46,029,560) 597,621 525,832  (46,016,742) (309,996) 33,812,440
If the currencies RELLAHEEL
strengthened by 5% WA ERERS%
against the functional &5
currency of the (R)/8m
respective entities,
(decrease)/increase in
profit after tax (1,921,734) 24,951 21,954 (1,921,199) (12,942) 1,411,669
If the currencies RELLAHEEL
weakened by 5% e EEES% -
against the functional &%
currency of the #h0,/(5)
respective entities,
increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax 1,921,734 (24,951) (21,954) 1,921,199 12942 (1,411,669)
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk

35. BIEAMEEEERBES)

(c) EERMRK

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net
of impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to
credit risk without taking into account the value of any
collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. Invoices
are normally payable within 60 days of issuance, except
for certain well-established customers, where the terms
are extended from 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly reviewed by senior management.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the Group’s
own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 51% (2018: 29%) of the
balance representing a receivable from a single customer
(2018: single customer), which was derived from sales by
the precision parts and components segment.

RIEFEM BN KERN S RE
EREESINRRERBE KX
AEBEOEERR - X R R
P B EAERREMEEIRE
BEE -

FEWARTE

AEEEREEENE =FET
R BBANKEHNHE - A
REEEHETRINER » &
ARBEEZERFR TR
E-AKEETFPEEGHRD
IBREFHZAERER  EHN
EE—RBEEMKE — K%
EFBEANTRAXN - RIFE
BEFAZFANTEATRER
BiR - BREPHEEREE -
AEBEHREERURARRER
ZEHRBEFEEREARESER
e aREEES TN AR
Wit aRE B -

AEEAZEERRZEETE
REXEPZERFEEE - TP
FItE2TREAEZBRZIE
RERTZEEERR  BREE
- EFNEREEERER
B 1= A REAR A E A S AR E AP
MAETHE  ZFEETEERSE
BECHRFLER

RIR S B - 5 R B 2R
e EERRERE A% (=
T—/\F  29%) TR AT TS
BN —REF(—E—N\F
—BEF) -
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—E-NEER

157




e MR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 35. B EREEEERBEKZ)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERKE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised by
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment. The expected loss rate used in
the provision matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past three years
and adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and
ECL for trade receivables using a provision matrix is

summarised below.

As at 31 December 2019

FEWRRTH (&)

AEENEPRHBEEZNEF A
B - EWRR IR KRR RS E D
B REREPRRBRA ORI
FrB BB IR EE S - AR
AE At EREREN RS
FEEEE UREBESEREAN
EHEHNEERERIERE
B TRYEREELEEEBR
RENBEERE  RREEBA
MEBERFEABOMELERE
THE REBE=ZFNERE
ERBELRTESEBNNEE
REERMEHRERER - WRIE
ERIMATEARETRHE  UR
R gt = FF b S 4 HA ] A AR O
ZEHER  BREAEEE KR
RGBT YRR TR B F R
B fl&T

EREGREENEWERRENEE
2\ B A0 T8 HA {2 B &5 18 8 BTt 4n
T~

R-ZE—-NE+=-BA=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
RHEEE ARREE BERAE EERE

% HK$ HK$

BT BT
Not past due BE N 0 50,484,711 = No &
Less than 1 month past due BHLR—1EA 0 16,761,447 = No f&
1 to 3 months past due BH-==fA 0 5,309,100 - No %
3 to 6 months past due BHR=Z,EA 0 611,806 - No %
1 to 2 years past due AH—EME 100 254,979 254,979 Yes B
Over 5 years past due MEAEN 100 822,410 822,410 Yes &

74,244,453 1,077,389
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

Expected loss

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. BIEAMEEEERBES)

() EERBRE)
FEWIRTE (&)
R_F—N\F+=-A=+—H

Gross carrying

rate amount  Loss allowance Credit-impaired
AHEBER BIRmE EEEE ZERE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Not past due EFSak 0 63,845,329 - No f&
Less than 1 month past due BAHLR—1EA 0 16,294,593 - No £
1 to 3 months past due aH—Z=={EA 0 6,295,444 - No £
3 to 6 months past due as==,EA 0 931,896 = No %
Over 5 years past due AHAFEE 100 822,410 822,410 Yes B
88,189,672 822,410

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$1,077,389 (2018: HK$822,410) on the
trade receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for
trade receivables is summarised below.

R-B-AF+-_A=+—8"
7% % (8] 30 4 st FE U R TR A B AE A
ER(=T-N\F:8E) -

R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—8"
REEREWIRBEEREEEEG
1,077,3897% (= & — J\ F :
822,410/ L) » EURERIB BB

2 BT

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-NEF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At beginning of year REH] 822,410 822,410
Increase in allowance B 7 180 254,979 -
At end of year RER 1,077,389 822,410
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

35. BIEAMEEEERBE#)

() FEERBRE)

Other receivables

The Group considers that the other receivables have
low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong capacity
to meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and low risk of default. Impairment on other
receivables is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past
3 years (2018: 3 years) and the financial position of
the counterparties by reference to, among others, their
management or audited accounts and available press
information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case.
The management of the Group considers the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant after taking into
account the financial position and credit quality of the
counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

H WA

AEERBEMEUKENEE
RESIE  ERERAEEHA
BITAEANREREEENENR
58 MR MR BV o H i FE K
BEHRRENR T ZEANEHEE
BIEAE - YR T REHRER

EfEFEMEERE A5EE
EZREBABE=F(=2F—N
F:ZHF)NELEREEERLE
BRETHOFBRR - EhEHE
SEHEREREEZRA RA
BSHTIRER  WREBEEH AR
EHREERRRH T RERE
TENEBRENRIELAE
IEEt S REEMBOME
AR EBRERTHENER - &
EEETOMBRAREEER
& AEBEEERAZTER
BEMNBHEEBBRLTERX -

ERFIEL 2 EEHEREAR
BB -
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

35. BIEAMEEEERBES)

(d) RBEEER

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative and
derivative financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments
is as follows:

AEBERHERRART O RITE
NRELEFHE 2 TERITES
BMEEmT

2019 2018
ZE-nF —E-N\F
After After After After
Within 1 year but 2 years but Within 1 year but 2 years but
Total 1 year or within within Total 1 year or within within
amount on demand 2 years 5 years amount  on demand 2 years 5 years
-FRy  -FHE  RERE —FRg  —FRE  RERE
aE REX Gk TER et REX MER LER
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$
B B BT B BT BT BT BT
Non-derivative: AR
Trade payables g 36,254,341 36,254,341 - - 44923952 44,923,952 - -
Financial liabilities included B2 R EHEERE
in accrued liabilities and — fERFIEZ £/
other payables AE(ME23)
(note 23) 5,318,195 5,318,195 - - 3,084,823 3,084,823 - -
Interest-bearing bank BERITEE
borrowings 12,133,526 12,133,526 - - 32,237,641 32,237,641 - -
Other borrowings Hinfa & - - - - 3974886 2,196,788 1,240,992 537,106
Lease liabilities HERRE 2,507,984 1,543,074 839,187 125,723 = = - -
56,214,046 55,249,136 839,187 125,723 84,221,302 82,443,204 1,240,992 537,106

(e) EAXRERE

(e) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

AEEEREANEERRERR
BEARBNFELLER I RS
BENERNLL R UXEAEER
RN BRREREANEE -

AEESRARKERRE(LER
HEARBYHEFEHAE - B
MR RABEARE  AREH
ERBIXNTHERROKRE - #BE
BARTREKBITHERND - K&
B R EBLAAIINEEA INE
RER -RBE_T-NFR_
Z-NFE+A=+—HBILFE
N EREEEANER  BX
B AR (R 28
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HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, accrued
liabilities and other payables less bank balances and
cash. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

35.

MBEREEEERBRE)

(e) EXREE(E)

AEBRAEAGEBEL RERH
BARBR  EEEFERINE
BAMBEEFEE - BHFE
PESERTREMEE BE
BE - EHNEHE BraERkE
b3R8 - WHIBRBRITTE B K
Re -  BEABEARARBMEE AR
iz - RIEBHAZELRERE
i SN

The outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19"”) at Mainland China
and the subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the
government has had an impact on the Group’s operation in
China. The Group had to suspend its manufacturing activities
since the beginning of February 2020 due to mandatory
government quarantine measures to reduce the spread of the
epidemic. The Group has resumed its manufacturing activities
since 20 February 2020 and is ready at approximately 80%
capacity as at the date hereof. The directors of the Company
are assessing the financial impact that the COVID-19 will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at the date
that these financial statements are authorised for issue.

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Interest-bearing bank and other HERITREMER
borrowings 12,040,876 35,809,699
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,400,456 -
Trade payables FERTERIE 36,254,341 44,923,952
Accrued liabilities and other payables EstaE A ENFE 33,812,113 46,704,221
Less: Bank balances and cash W SRITER MRS (51,505,394) (43,762,395)
Net debt BIEFEE 33,002,392 83,675,477
Total equity T ERE 286,305,666 273,573,922
Total capital and net debt WERNEIRFE 319,308,058 357,249,399
Gearing ratio BAREEL = 10% 23%

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36. EHREER

SZHAEA RS ([COVID-19 ) i A E
AEEZ 2 R EH B R BREFHETHRE
Bt SASEEEFENERBKT
2 o HRET AEER S EAU 3R Hl R
i ANEER T -TF - AV
TEEEEE) - R AEBE=-Z=
EFE_A-_+HEEMEREES
HIEAREBEE  HEFEDREZY
80%/KF o R AE R IEZ Y EEE
EAREBRE P HHFRERENZE B
By - COVID- 198 28 Z S I mziE
BB M 2 o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BIFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

37. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

37. DRIRR 2 FA ISR R

POSITION
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
= BT BIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AR &KE 185,588,698 193,727,368
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE e Kk
receivables H b fE Y F018 273,937 330,355
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEEBE 213,387 164,457
487,324 494,812
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables ez BE R EMENIE 388,320 323,300
Due to subsidiaries FETIT B A RI3IE 90,481,877 99,150,205
90,870,197 99,473,505
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEEFE (90,382,873)  (98,978,693)
Net assets BEFE 95,205,825 94,748,675
EQUITY =
Share capital R 27 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves i 29(b) 68,505,345 68,048,195
Total equity AR 95,205,825 94,748,675
This statement of financial position was approved and I BERARER T F ==+

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March

2020 and signed on its behalf by

NAREESIERTERM XA T

IIANERERZEE

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FEIZA PR Z
Director Director

EE EF

BRERERERAT
—E-NEER
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HE-_Z-NAGF+-A=-+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2019

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ~ LA T AZEERiBE A EM BRERE 2 24 -
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited ~ BEREBEME @ IHTHEEEE S A HERL
consolidated financial statements, is set out below. BITEE®RK ©

RESULTS e

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEFE T N\F E—tF —ZT—FRF ZT—aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FAIT T

REVENUE A 345,581 463,655 422,925 431,017 431,757
PROFIT/(LOSS) BB ETSE
BEFORE TAX (E518) 22,386 5,109 9,146 (8,302) 205
TAX IR (5,727) (3,884) (854) 192 (51)
PROFIT/(LOSS) ViN/NEIE 2 =N
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FriG s F,~
OWNERS OF THE (f&518)
COMPANY 16,659 1,225 8,292 (8,110) 154
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
31 December
+=A=+—8H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

—E-hE —T-)N\F —T—+tF —T—RF —T—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT FHETT F&TT FATT

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 401,193 425,565 429,413 378,790 398,926

TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (114,887) (151,991) (162,574) (145,729) (152,777)

286,306 273,574 266,839 233,061 246,149

164 K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019




K[P

K & P International Holdings Limited
WOPE BB R B R A AT
Units 2304-06

23rd Floor, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

ERFREARARBNT IR
ENHRL T =ZE=ENETAE



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層之討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理人員簡歷詳情
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合利潤表
	綜合全面收入表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


